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1 ; HEARING EXAMINER: This hearing w i l l come 
i 

2 to order . We'll c a l l the next case, which i s 9782, 

3 which i s the a p p l i c a t i o n of Oryx Energy Company f o r an 

4 ! unorthodox l o c a t i o n and compulsory p o o l i n g , Lea 

5 County, New Mexico. 

6 At t h i s time I ' l l c a l l f o r appearances. 

7 MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I'm Tom 

8 K e l l a h i n of the Santa Fe law f i r m of K e l l a h i n , 

9 K e l l a h i n & Aubrey. I'm appearing on behalf of the 

10 a p p l i c a n t , Oryx Energy Company, Mr. Examiner. 

11 MR. LOPEZ: Mr. Examiner, my name i s Owen 

12 Lopez w i t h the Hinkl e law f i r m i n Santa Fe, New 

13 Mexico, appearing on behalf of Joe J. Reynolds. 

14 Mr. Examiner, at t h i s time I would l i k e to 

15 move t h a t t h i s case be continued to the next hearing 

16 examiner docket or l a t e r . 

17 The basis f o r my request i s t h a t the 

18 p a r t i e s were i n good f a i t h n e g o t i a t i n g t o t r y and 

19 s e t t l e t h e i r d i f f e r e n c e s i n t h i s matter and, at l e a s t 

20 from our p o i n t of view, had every e x p e c t a t i o n of 

21 succeeding. But these n e g o t i a t i o n s broke down Monday, 

22 and we have not had as much time t o prepare as 

23 adequately as we would have l i k e d . 

24 Secondly, we f e e l t h a t the a p p l i c a t i o n i s 

25 premature because the w e l l i n the n o r t h h a l f of 
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1 ; Section 27 i n a companion case i n a l l p r o b a b i l i t y and 

2 by a l l l o g i c w i l l be d r i l l e d f i r s t before t h i s 

3 i proposed w e l l i n Section 22 i s d r i l l e d . 

4 And our t h i r d reason i s t h a t the AFE 

5 submitted f o r the Reynolds' c o n s i d e r a t i o n i n d i c a t e d 

6 '. t h a t i t was going t o be an Atoka t e s t and not a Morrow 

7 ' t e s t , and t h e r e f o r e we would argue t h a t the n o t i c e i s 

8 d e f i c i e n t . 

9 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. K e l l a h i n , any 

10 response? 

11 MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, Mr. Examiner. Mr. 

12 Examiner, my c l i e n t has been a c t i v e l y working w i t h Mr. 

13 Reynolds and h i s group f o r some p e r i o d of time i n t h i s 

14 general area, and c e r t a i n l y by mid-September had 

15 proposed to the Reynolds group t h i s s p e c i f i c w e l l . I 

16 d i d not know u n t i l the examiner c a l l e d the docket t h i s 

17 morning, s l i g h t l y a f t e r 8:15, t h a t , i n f a c t , Mr. Lopez 

18 I represented the Reynolds group. 

19 I'm d i s a p p o i n t e d t h a t I was not t o l d before 

20 I brought some seven people to Santa Fe to p a r t i c i p a t e 

21 i n the hearing p r e p a r a t i o n , as w e l l as the expense and 

22 e f f o r t of g e t t i n g ready today f o r the h e a r i n g . Had I 

23 \ been t o l d t h a t e a r l i e r , we might have been able t o 

24 j make some accommodation. 
i 

25 I have been i n s t r u c t e d by my c l i e n t to 
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1 proceed w i t h today's h e a r i n g . We hold l i t t l e or no 

2 hope of r e s o l v i n g t h i s matter w i t h o u t the i n t e r j e c t i o n 

3 | of the hearing examiner i n the p o o l i n g process. 

4 : The f a c t t h a t Mr. Lopez contends the AFE 

5 does not give them adequate n o t i c e of the Atoka 

6 pro s p e c t , I t h i n k , i s dimin i s h e d by the c e r t i f i e d 

7 ' l e t t e r t h a t we sent to h i s c l i e n t on September 25, 

8 'which i n c l u d e d a copy of the a p p l i c a t i o n i n t h i s 

9 case . 

10 The a p p l i c a t i o n reads and i d e n t i f i e s the 

11 Atoka f o r m a t i o n as the primary t a r g e t . I t i d e n t i f i e s 

12 i the Antelope Ridge Atoka Gas Pool. 

13 I can't b e l i e v e t h a t t h e r e i s any s u r p r i s e 

14 to the Reynolds f a m i l y about t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case. I 

15 know t h a t t h e i r t e c h n i c a l people have been t a l k i n g to 

16 •my t e c h n i c a l people f o r some t i m e , and I can't b e l i e v e 

17 t h a t t h a t i s going t o s u r p r i s e the Reynolds p a r t i e s . 

18 i The case has been p r o p e r l y f i l e d . The 

19 a p p l i c a t i o n has been served on the opposing p a r t i e s 20 

20 days before the hearing date, and we are ready to 

21 proceed t h i s a f t e r n o o n , Mr. Examiner. 

22 MR. LOPEZ: I f I j u s t might b r i e f l y 

23 respond, Mr. Examiner. With respect to b r i n g i n g the 

24 witnesses, as I've i n d i c a t e d p r e v i o u s l y , Mr. K e l l a h i n 

25 i has companion Cases 9783 end 9784, t o which we are 
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1 : unopposed and whi c h he w i l l need t h e w i t n e s s e s t h a t he 

2 b r o u g h t . 

3 There i s no c o m p e l l i n g t i m e c o n s t r a i n t s t o 

4 have heard Case 9782. 

5 Wi t h r e s p e c t t o n o t i f i c a t i o n t h a t t h i s i s 

6 ! an Atoka t e s t , i f you w i l l r e f e r t o t h e a d v e r t i s e m e n t 

7 ; i n Case 9782, i t i s , i n f a c t , a Morrow c o m p u l s o r y 

8 p o o l i n g case, and t h e AFE i n d i c a t e s i t t o be an Atoka 

9 t e s t , w i t h w h i c h I agree w i t h Mr. K e l l a h i n , b u t , i n 

10 f a c t , he i s r e q u e s t i n g t h e Commission t o f o r c e p o o l 

11 : t h r o u g h t h e Morrow. I n t h a t r e s p e c t , we argue t h a t 

12 t h e n o t i c e i s d e f i c i e n t . 

13 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Lopez, d i d your 

14 c l i e n t r e c e i v e t h e l e t t e r of September 25, 1989, i n 

15 which i t shows t h a t Joe Reynolds o f Lubbock, Texas, 

16 i was p r e s e n t e d a copy o f t h e a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

17 ' MR. LOPEZ: Yes. 

18 ; HEARING EXAMINER: T h i s i s t h e same 

19 document w h i c h I p r e p a r e d t h e a d v e r t i s e m e n t f o r . So 

20 on t h a t b a s i s I f i n d your m o t i o n t o c o n t i n u e a t t h i s 

21 t i m e u n a c c e p t a b l e , and w e ' l l go on w i t h t h e h e a r i n g 

22 t o d a y . 

23 MR. LOPEZ: F i n e . 

24 HEARING EXAMINER: Are t h e r e any o t h e r 
i 

25 j appearances? 
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1 Mr. Lopez, do you have any w i t n e s s e s ? 

2 MR. LOPEZ: Yes, Mr. Examiner, I have one 

3 w i t n e s s . 

4 : HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. K e l l a h i n , how many 

5 i w i t n e s s e s do you have? 

6 ! MR. KELLAHIN: I have two w i t n e s s e s , Mr. 

7 Examine r . 

8 : HEARING EXAMINER: Are t h e r e any o t h e r 

9 appearances? W i l l t h e w i t n e s s e s p l e a s e stand? 

10 (Witnesses sworn.) 

11 MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, as our f i r s t 

12 w i t n e s s , we would c a l l Mr. Ala n Beers. Mr. Beers i s a 

13 p e t r o l e u m landman w i t h Oryx Energy Company. 

14 C. ALAN BEERS, 

15 t h e w i t n e s s h e r e i n , a f t e r h a v i n g been f i r s t d u l y sworn 

16 upon h i s o a t h , was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

17 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

18 BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

19 Q. Mr. Beers, f o r t h e r e c o r d , would you p l e a s e 

20 s t a t e your name and o c c u p a t i o n . 

21 A. Ala n Beers. I'm a p e t r o l e u m landman f o r 

22 Oryx Energy Company. 

23 Q. Mr. Beers, how l o n g have you been employed 

24 as a p e t r o l e u m landman? 

25 A. I s t a r t e d work f o r P h i l l i p s P e t r o l e u m i n 

CUMBRE COURT REPORTING 
(505) 984-2244 



9 j 
I 

1 May of 79 as a landman t r a i n e e and worked w i t h them 

2 ; through November of 87. At t h a t time I accepted a job j 

3 w i t h Oryx Energy and have been working f o r them f o r | 

4 the past two years. 

5 Q. Where do you reside Mr. Beers? 

6 A. D a l l a s , Texas. 

7 Q. With regards t o land d u t i e s assigned to you I 

8 by your company, are you re s p o n s i b l e f o r c e r t a i n areas 

9 of southeastern New Mexico? 

10 A. Y e s , s i r . 

11 Q. Would those r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s i n c l u d e the 

12 p a r t i c u l a r acreage t h a t i s i n v o l v e d i n Lea County, New 

13 Mexico, t h a t ' s the su b j e c t of t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n ? ! 

14 A. Yes. i 

15 Q. Would your knowledge and i n f o r m a t i o n w i t h 

16 regards to land t i t l e matters extend to the immediate 

17 adjacent areas w i t h i n t h i s Township 22 South, Range 34 

18 East? 

19 A. Yes, i t would. 

20 Q. And you have s p e c i f i c knowledge about the j 

21 i n t e r e s t s of the working i n t e r e s t i n Section 22 of 

22 t h a t township and range? 

23 A. Yes , s i r . ! 

24 Q. I n f a c t , have you been the landman 

25 r e s p o n s i b l e to your company f o r e f f o r t s to o b t a i n 

j 
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1 v o l u n t a r y agreement among the working i n t e r e s t owners 

2 fo r t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l ? 

3 A . Yes , I have . 

4 Q • How long have you been s p e c i f i c a l l y working 

5 :on t h a t p a r t i c u l a r task? 

6 A . I s t a r t e d my work on September the 12th 

7 \ w i t h a p r o p o s a l . 

8 Q. That i s w i t h regards to t h i s s p e c i f i c w e l l ? 

9 A. Yes , s i r . 

10 Q. For purposes cf the hearing today, t h a t ' s 

11 i d e n t i f i ed as the Antelope No. 2 Well? 

12 A. Yes, s i r , t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. Have you been i n v o l v e d i n c o n s o l i d a t i n g 

14 working i n t e r e s t ownerships f o r other Atoka and Morrow 

15 w e l l s i n t h i s area? 

16 A. Yes , I have. 

17 Q. How long have you been working on t h i s 

18 pa r t i c u l ar area? 

19 A . I s t a r t e d working on t h i s area i n October 

20 of l a s t year, as a matter of f a c t . 

21 Q. Did your e f f o r t s i n October of l a s t year 

22 through the c u r r e n t i n c l u d e p r i o r correspondence and 

23 conver sa t i o n s w i t h the Joe Reynolds group? 

24 A . Yes , i t d i d . 

25 Q. What p a r t i c u l a r i n d i v i d u a l s w i t h Joe 
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1 ; Reynolds have you had discussions? 

2 A. Joe Reynolds h i m s e l f and I b e l i e v e h i s son, 

3 J e f f ReynoIds. 

4 ; Q. Do they have other working i n t e r e s t i n 

5 other spacing u n i t s or w e l l s t h a t Oryx has d r i l l e d i n 

6 t h i s area on the Atoka or the Morrow formation? 

7 A. Yes, they do, two previous w e l l s . 

8 MR. KELLAHIN: At t h i s t i m e , Mr. Examiner, 

9 we tender Mr. Beers as an expert petroleum landman. 

10 HEARING EXAMINER: Are there any 

11 o b j e c t i o n s ? 

12 MR. LOPEZ: No o b j e c t i o n s . 

13 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Beers i s so 

14 j q u a l i f i e d . 

15 Q. (BY MR. KELLAHIN) Mr. Beers, l e t ' s take a 

16 few moments and use what i s marked as E x h i b i t No. 1 as 

17 a means by which to o r i e n t us a l l as t o what 

18 p a r t i c u l a r tasks you performed. 

19 Before we discuss your p a r t i c u l a r 

20 involvement, would you take a moment and i d e n t i f y the 

21 d i s p l a y f o r us and t e l l us how to understand what i t 

22 : says? 

23 A. Yes. This i s a p l a t of the acreage i n the 

24 working i n t e r e s t ownership i n Township 22 South, 34 

25 East, i n about a n i n e - s e c t i o n area, i n c l u d i n g the 
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i 

1 proposed p o o l i n g of the south h a l f of Section 22. And 

2 i t sets out at the bottom the working i n t e r e s t owned 

3 ;by the v a r i o u s p a r t i e s . 

4 Q. The c o l o r code w i l l correspond then t o the 

5 I working i n t e r e s t ownership w i t h i n those p a r t i c u l a r 
j 

6 | s e c t i o n s or p o r t i o n s of sections? 

7 A. Yes, s i r . 

8 Q. And t h a t represents the workinq i n t e r e s t ? 

9 A. Yes, s i r . 

10 1 Q. Let me d i r e c t you to the south h a l f of 

11 ; Section 22. I s t h a t the proposed Atoka-Morrow spacing 

12 ; u n i t f o r the su b j e c t w e l l f o r t h i s case? 

13 A. Yes, i t i s . 

14 Q. When we look at the south h a l f of 22, what 

15 percentage of t h a t spacing u n i t does Oryx have 

16 v o l u n t a r i l y committed t o i t at t h i s p o i n t ? 

17 A. Just our own 75 percent. 

18 Q. The balance of t h a t south h a l f of 22, t o 

19 the best of your knowledge, i s held by what p a r t i e s ? 

20 A. P a c i f i c E n t e r p r i s e s , Joe Reynolds, and BTAO 

21 Producer s. 

22 Q. When we look at the south h a l f , the d i s p l a y 

23 shows Oryx w i t h 75 percent. I t says P a c i f i c has 
24 13.75? 

25 A. Yes , s i r . 
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j 
t 
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1 Q. BTA has 5 percent? 

2 A . Y e s , s i r . j 

3 Q. And Joe Reynolds has 6.25 percent? ' 

4 : A. Ri g h t . 

5 Q. How d i d you make t h a t d e t e r m i n a t i o n of the 

6 ! percentage of the working i n t e r e s t owners? 

7 A. We l l , I took the ownership i n the southwest 

8 quarter and also the ownership i n the southeast 

9 ! qu a r t e r and formed the working i n t e r e s t as shown. 

10 Q. I show you what's marked as E x h i b i t No. 2, 

11 Mr. Beers. What i s t h i s e x h i b i t ? 

12 A. I t ' s a summary of events of the proposed --

13 s t a r t i n g w i t h the proposal w i t h the attached AFE and 

14 a l l conversations between the p a r t i e s to date. 

15 Q. These represent your personal e f f o r t s w i t h 

16 regards to the v a r i o u s p a r t i e s t o form a v o l u n t a r y 

17 u n i t ? 

1 8 : A. Y e s , s i r . 

19 Q. Before we get i n t o the s p e c i f i c s of your 

20 e f f o r t s to form on a v o l u n t a r y basis the spacing u n i t , 

21 l e t ' s go back to E x h i b i t No. 1 and have you i d e n t i f y 

22 ; some more of t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n . When we look at the 

23 d i s p l a y , there appears t o be two w e l l s t h a t c u r r e n t l y 

24 e x i s t i n some status? 

25 \ A. Ri g h t . 

j 
i 
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1 i Q. What i s the f i r s t w e l l d r i l l e d ? 

2 A. The f i r s t w e l l was d r i l l e d i n the south 

3 : h a l f of 27, being the Sun Federal Com, and the second 

4 : w e l l d r i l l e d and i s c u r r e n t l y p r e p a r i n g t o complete i s 

5 i n the n o r t h h a l f of 26, being the Ojo Chiso Federal 

6 No. 1. 

7 Q. Approximately when was the w e l l i n the 

8 ; south h a l f of 27 completed? 

9 A. I b e l i e v e i t was spudded i n June, and I 

10 i b e l i e v e i t was completed sometime, say, l a t e J u l y , 

11 f i r s t of August, p o s s i b l y . 

12 ; Q. That's of t h i s year? 

13 j A. Ri g h t . 

14 Q. You're now c u r r e n t l y completing the Ojo 

15 Chiso Federal No. 1 Well? 

16 A. That i s t r u e . 

17 Q. Do you have documentation t o support your 

18 summary as shown on E x h i b i t No. 2 of your e f f o r t s to 

19 contact these p a r t i e s and o b t a i n a v o l u n t a r y 

20 agreement? 

21 A. Yes, I do. I b e l i e v e i t ' s the next 

22 e x h i b i t . 

23 0. Let me show you what i s marked as E x h i b i t 

24 No. 3, Mr. Beers, and ask you i f t h i s represents t r u e 

25 and accurate copies of your correspondence w i t h the 
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1 | v a r i o u s working i n t e r e s t owners? 

2 A. Yes, i t does. 

3 Q. When you submitted t h i s l e t t e r to the 

4 var i o u s working i n t e r e s t owners, d i d you a t t a c h t o i t 

5 an an it e m i z e d estimate of w e l l costs? 

6 A . Yes, su re d i d . 

7 Q. Subseguent to sending out the l e t t e r , what, 

8 i f anything e l s e , d i d you do t o i n your e f f o r t s to 

9 c o n s o l i d a t e the acreage? 

10 A. B a s i c a l l y , j u s t s e v e r a l phone c a l l s t o the 

11 p a r t i e s to f i n d out where they were and the s t a t u s of 

12 our pr o p o s a l . 

13 Q. As of today, do you have a commitment from 

14 BTA w i t h regards to committing on a v o l u n t a r y basis 

15 t h e i r 5 percent i n t e r e s t i n the spacing u n i t ? 

16 i A. No, s i r , I don't, but I t h i n k t h a t could 

17 happen any ti m e . 

18 \ Q. No t w i t h s t a n d i n g the issuance of a p o o l i n g 

19 order then, you're prepared to continue to n e g o t i a t e 

20 w i t h BTA and other working i n t e r e s t owners i n an 

21 attempt to get a v o l u n t a r y agreement? 

22 A. Yes, s i r . 

23 Q. What i s the c u r r e n t s t a t u s of your e f f o r t s 

24 ; to get BTA committed to the w e l l ? 

25 A. I've j u s t had phone c o n v e r s a t i o n s . I do 
i 
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1 b e l i e v e they w i l l p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l . 

2 Q. Have they p a r t i c i p a t e d w i t h t h e i r acreage 

3 ; i n the other two w e l l s t h a t were d r i l l e d w i t h i n the 

4 ! areas shown on E x h i b i t No. 1? 

5 A . Yes, s i r . 

6 Q. And you d i d not have to f o r c e pool BTA i n 

7 order t o get t h e i r commitment to the acreage? 

8 A. No , s i r . 

9 Q. When we look at the P a c i f i c i n t e r e s t , i s 

10 ! t h a t P a c i f i c E n t e r p r i s e s ? 

11 A. Yes , s i r . 

12 Q. Is t h a t how they are i d e n t i f i e d ? 

13 A. Right . 

14 Q. Do they also have i n t e r e s t i n any of the 

15 other w e l l s t h a t were d r i l l e d as shown on E x h i b i t No. 

16 1? 

17 i A • Yes, s i r , i n both previous w e l l s . 

18 Q. Were you able t o s u c c e s s f u l l y achieve 

19 v o l u n t a r y commitment of t h e i r i n t e r e s t to those w e l l s 

20 A. Yes , s i r . 

21 Q • What i s c u r r e n t s t a t u s of your e f f o r t to 

22 get P a c i f i c E n t e r p r i s e s committed t o the w e l l ? 

23 A. We've had phone c o n v e r s a t i o n s , as shown on 

24 the summary of events. They propose an acreage t r a d e 

25 of some other acreage we had i n Lea County, and we 
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1 i evaluated t h a t t r a d e and decided to t u r n down t h e i r 

2 ; p r o p o s a l . 

3 Q. Let's go s p e c i f i c a l l y to what i s i d e n t i f i e d 

4 ; as the Joe Reynolds i n t e r e s t . On e i t h e r of the two 

5 e x i s t i n g w e l l s , e i t h e r the completed w e l l or the w e l l 

6 ! t h a t ' s i n the completion process, d i d Mr. Reynolds and 

7 h i s group have an i n t e r e s t i n e i t h e r one of those 

8 wel l s ? 

9 A. Yes, s i r , i n both w e l l s . 

10 Q. What i n t e r e s t d i d they have i n e i t h e r one 

11 i of those w e l l s i n terms of a percentage? 

12 ; A. I n the w e l l i n the south h a l f of 27, the 

13 Sun Federal Com, I b e l i e v e they p a r t i c i p a t e d w i t h a 3 

14 percent working i n t e r e s t . 

15 In the w e l l i n the n o r t h h a l f of 26, they 

16 \ p a r t i c i p a t e d w i t h a 12.5 working i n t e r e s t . 

17 The other i n t e r e s t o u t s t a n d i n g i n the south 

18 h a l f of 27 was farmed out to BTA. 

19 Q. What i s the c u r r e n t s t a t u s of your e f f o r t s 

20 to have Joe Reynolds commit h i s i n t e r e s t on a 

21 v o l u n t a r y basis t o the south h a l f of Section 22? 

22 A. We've j u s t had conversa t i o n s on the phone, 

23 and every time I have got an answer of they ' r e 

24 j e v a l u a t i n g and p o l l i n g t h e i r people to see i f they 

25 , they want to p a r t i c i p a t e or not. 

i 

i 
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1 Q. Have they communicated t o you any o f f e r of 

2 ; t r a d e , farmout, or p a r t i c i p a t i o n t h a t you have not yet 

3 j evaluated? 
i 

4 ! A. Not to me d i r e c t l y , they have not. 

5 Q. A l l of t h e i r proposals t o you have been 

6 responded i n kind by your company through you? 

7 A. Yes, s i r . 

8 ; Q. Do you have any agreement w i t h them at t h i s 

9 : p o i n t on a method by which t h e i r acreage can be 

10 ( v o l u n t a r i l y committed t o the w e l l ? 

I l l A . No, s i r . 

12 j Q. Let me ask you to i d e n t i f y f o r us E x h i b i t 

13 No. 4, Mr. Beers. What i s E x h i b i t No. 4? 

14 A. I t ' s our proposed AFE f o r the proposed w e l l 

15 i i n the south h a l f of 22. 

16 Q. I s t h i s the AFE t h a t was attached t o your 

17 j l e t t e r of September 12 t h a t was submitted to the 

18 ;various working i n t e r e s t owners as shown on E x h i b i t 

19 No . 3 ? 
20 A. Y e s , i t was. 

i 

21 Q. To the best of your knowledge, i s t h i s 

22 s t i l l a c u r r e n t and accurate AFE f o r the proposed 

23 costs of d r i l l i n g and completing the su b j e c t w e l l ? 
24 A. Yes, i t i s . 

25 Q. Have you received any o b j e c t i o n s or 
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comments from any of the proposed working i n t e r e s t 

owners about the AFE costs? 

A. No, s i r , I have not. 

Q. Let me ask you to i d e n t i f y what i s marked 

as E x h i b i t No. 5, Mr. Beers. What i s t h a t , s i r ? 

A. This i s our previous o p e r a t i n g agreement 

t h a t we used on the w e l l t h a t ' s c u r r e n t l y completing 

i n the n o r t h h a l f of 26, and we w i l l propose t o use 

the same o p e r a t i n g agreement and cost as we have on 

the two previous w e l l s . 

Q. I s t h i s a form as t o a j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement as t o substance and form t h a t has been 

approved and signed o f f by other working i n t e r e s t 

owners f o r other w e l l s ? 

A. Yes. The same p a r t i e s t h a t we are p o o l i n g 

on the c u r r e n t w e l l have a l l signed t h i s previous 

agreement on our w e l l t h a t ' s now completed. 

Q. That's the w e l l i n the n o r t h h a l f of 26? 

A . Yes, s i r . 

Q. What d i d you u t i l i z e f o r overhead rates on 

a monthly basis f o r a producing w e l l r a t e and a 

d r i l l i n g w e l l r a t e i n the COPAS attachment t o t h a t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement f o r the w e l l i n the n o r t h h a l f of 

26? 

A. For a d r i l l i n g w e l l r a t e , we used $5,800, 
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1 ; and f o r a producing w e l l r a t e , we used $580. 
j 

2 Q. Are those the proposed charges t h a t you're 

3 ; recommending t o the examiner f o r the Antelope Ridge 

4 ; No. 2 w e l l i n the south h a l f of 22? 

5; A. Y e s , s i r . 

6 Q. To the best of your knowledge, are t h e r e 

7 any other working i n t e r e s t owners t h a t you need t o 

8 ' contact other than BTA, P a c i f i c E n t e r p r i s e s , and Joe 

9 :Reynolds w i t h regards t o the f o r m a t i o n of the spacing 

10 ! u n i t ? 

1 1 ; A . No, s i r . 

12 Q. What i s your understanding, Mr. Beers, of 

13 I the proposed f o r m a t i o n s t h a t you're seeking t o pool 

14 e i t h e r i n terms of the v e r t i c a l l i m i t s or the 

15 p a r t i c u l a r f o r m a t i o n s t h a t you're seeking a p o o l i n g 

16 order f o r ? 

17 A. We are seeking from the surface t o the base 

18 of the Morrow and Pennsylvanian f o r m a t i o n s . 

19 Q. What's your understanding of why you're 

20 doing t h a t ? 

21 A. B a s i c a l l y , we would l i k e t o -- our main 

22 t a r g e t i s the Atoka f o r m a t i o n , and i f and when 

23 d r i l l i n g the w e l l , the Atoka i s d r y , we propose to 

24 d r i l l on down to the Morrow to t e s t i t . 

25 Q. I n the event the Atoka and the Morrow are 
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1 both u n s u c c e s s f u l , e i t h e r being noncommercial or being 

2 nonp r o d u c t i v e , do you want the o p p o r t u n i t y to come 

3 'back up the hole and p o t e n t i a l l y complete i n shallow 

4 j of e i t h e r o i l or gas zones? 

5: A. Y e s , s i r . 

6 Q. With regards to the spacing now, i f i t ' s 

7 u l t i m a t e l y determined the w e l l can produce from a 

8 spacing u n i t as small i n siz e as 40 acres around the 

9 su b j e c t w e l l l o c a t i o n , would the percentages and the 

10 , p a r t i e s d i f f e r i n any way between what would be 

11 i n v o l v e d i n the south h a l f of Section 22? 

12 A. The p a r t i e s would be the same. The 

13 i n t e r e s t would d i f f e r . 

14 | Q. Let's go down t o 160. Assume you had gas 

15 ! spacing on 160 acres, t h a t would be the southwest 

16 : q u a r t e r of 22, how would the percentages change? 

17 A. Oryx would have 50. P a c i f i c E n t e r p r i s e s 

18 would have 27-1/2. Joe Reynolds would have 12.5. And 

19 \ BTA would have 10 percent. I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

20 Q. I f the spacing u n i t s should be reduced t o 

21 40 acres, would the p a r t i e s remain the same? 

22 A. Yes , s i r . 

23 Q. Would the percentages d i f f e r from those 

24 you've described f o r 160 acres? 

25 A. No, s i r . I t would be the same. 

CUMBRE COURT REPORTING 
(505) 984-2244 



22 

i 

1 MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, th>at completes 

2 my examination of Mr. Beers. We would at t h i s time 

3 move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of E x h i b i t s 1 through 5. 

4 HEARING EXAMINER: Are there any 

5 i o b j e c t i o n s ? 

6 j MR. LOPEZ: No, s i r . 

7 ' HEARING EXAMINER: E x h i b i t s 1 through 5 

8 ; w i l l be admitted i n t o evidence at t h i s t i m e . 

9 Mr. Lopez, your w i t n e s s . 

10 ; MR. LOPEZ: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

11 j CROSS-EXAMINATION 

12 i BY MR. LOPEZ: 

13 Q. Mr. Beers, r e f e r r i n g t o your E x h i b i t No. 1, 

14 ; the p l a t , I n o t i c e you don't show any ownership f o r 

15 the n o r t h h a l f of Section 15. I s t h a t because you 

16 don't know the ownership? 

17 MR. KELLAHIN: Excuse me. I'm s o r r y . 

18 Where i s i t ? 

19 MR. LOPEZ: North h a l f of 15 i s w h i t e . I 

20 was wondering why t h a t was l e f t b lank. 

21 Q. I guess my ques t i o n i s , to be p e r f e c t l y 

22 candid, i s n ' t the ownership of the n o r t h - h a l f t r a c t 

23 the same as i t i s i n Section 2 1 , 27, and 26? 

24 A. I b e l i e v e your c o r r e c t . 

25 Q. I t ' s j u s t a que s t i o n of c u r i o s i t y . 
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1 ! A. I j u s t d i d n ' t put i t on t h e r e . I can t e l l 

2 I you the ownership. Oryx has 50. I b e l i e v e i t ' s the 
i 

3 I same ownership as shown i n Section 21 as shown on the 

4 p l a t . 

5 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Lopez, before we 

6 ' c o n t i n u e , could you s i t here? I'm having a hard time 

7 • hear i n g . 

8 MR. LOPEZ: Okay. We're i n agreement. 

9 : Q. Again, r e f e r r i n g t o your E x h i b i t 1, you 

10 ; show three proposed w e l l l o c a t i o n s . I n what order do 

11 : you propose to d r i l l those w e l l s ? 

12 A. I b e l i e v e we w i l l s i m u l t a n e o u s l y d r i l l the 

13 w e l l i n Section 27, i n Section 26, and we w i l l move 

14 j the r i g from the n o r t h h a l f of 27 d i r e c t l y t o the 

15 south h a l f of 22. That i s our plan at the c u r r e n t 

16 t i m e . 

17 MR. LOPEZ: No f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s . 

18 1 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

19 \ BY HEARING EXAMINER: 

20 Q. Mr. Beers, I'm r e f e r r i n g now to E x h i b i t s 2 

21 and 3. I s t h i s the f i r s t c o n tact t h a t you had w i t h 

22 any of the p a r t i e s about t h i s proposed acreage? 

23 A. The September 12 l e t t e r was the f i r s t time 

24 , t h a t we a c t u a l l y proposed t h i s w e l l , the formal 

25 ! p r o p o s a l , but t h i s area has been t a l k e d about f o r 
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: 

1 s e v e r a l months. 

2 j Q. With whom? 
j 

3 j A. With the p a r t i e s i n d i c a t e d on the p l a t . 

4 Q. Why don't you r e f e r back, give me some time 

5 c o n s t r a i n t s , and was th e r e any correspondence t o back 

6 j you r claim? j 
! j 

7 A. There's not any correspondence as f a r as i 
i i 
i j 

8 the w e l l proposal i n the south h a l f of 22. A l l 

9 : p a r t i e s have b a s i c a l l y known through phone 

10 : c onversations our i n t e r e s t i n the area. And the two ] 

11 : previous w e l l s , I t h i n k , set the tone of the two 

12 producers of what we wanted t o do i n the area. 

13 | Q. Let's r e f e r to E x h i b i t No. 4. This was 

14 attached to the l e t t e r of September 12; i s t h a t I 

15 c o r r e c t ? 

16 A. Yes, i t was. 

17 Q. On i t , i t says d r i l l i n g complete to 12,800 

18 f e e t as an Atoka gas w e l l , and your a p p l i c a t i o n s t a t e s 

19 to a Morrow. How deep w i l l t h i s w e l l be i f indeed i t 

20 i s d r i l l e d down to the Morrow? 

21 A. I b e l i e v e i t w i l l be approximately 13,700 

22 f e e t . 

23 Q. Let's go t o the second page of the AFE. 
24 Have you done c a l c u l a t i o n s of how these f i g u r e s w i l l 
25 change? 
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1 A. No, I haven't. The next witness might be 

2 I able t o answer t h a t a l i t t l e b i t b e t t e r . But from 

3 ; t a l k i n g t o people i n my company, i t won't change a 

4 j g r e a t d e a l . 

5 Q. But they w i l l change? 

6 A. I b e l i e v e i t w i l l change j u s t s l i g h t l y . 

7 Q. When were you n o t i f i e d t h a t you would 

8 indeed check on the Morrow or t e s t the Morrow a f t e r 

9 ; p r e p a r i n g t h i s AFE? 

10 A. I b e l i e v e that. I was n o t i f i e d probably 

11 a f t e r the AFE was sent o ut. I j u s t t h i n k i t ' s a good 

12 i idea, and I t h i n k our company does, t h a t we're 

13 d r i l l i n g a h o l e , and i f our t a r g e t f o r m a t i o n being the 

14 Atoka, t h a t we ought to go on down t o the Morrow i f 

15 the Atoka i s dry. 

16 Q. Did you submit an amended AFE to any of the 

17 p a r t i e s a f t e r you found out t h a t you would t e s t the 

18 Mor row? 

19 A. No, I d i d n ' t . 

20 Q. Did you not t h i n k i t was necessary, or were 

21 you not n o t i f i e d by your s u p e r i o r s to do t h a t ? 

22 A. W e l l , I d i d n ' t t h i n k i t was necessary, and 

23 I also wasn't n o t i f i e d t o do t h a t . 

24 I t h i n k the basis was the f a c t t h a t our 

25 main o b j e c t i v e was the Atoka, and I j u s t f a i l e d to do 
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1 ; i t . And I t h i n k the d o l l a r s we're t a l k i n g about, and 

2 the next witness might have an answer b e t t e r than I do 

3 -- we're not t a l k i n g about a whole l o t of money, and 

4 j she can probably answer t h a t . 
j 

5 I Q. When I have r e f e r r e d t o E x h i b i t No. 1, and 
i 

6 | we look at t h i s p a r t i c u l a r breakdown of the i n t e r e s t s 

7 i n the south h a l f , Oryx being 75, P a c i f i c , 13.75, Joe 

8 Reynolds, 6.25, and BTA, 5 pe r c e n t , i s t h i s an 

9 und i v i d e d throughout the south h a l f ? 
10 A. No, i t ' s n o t . Oryx owns 100 percent i n the j 

11 southeast q u a r t e r and 50 percent i n the southwest 

12 q u a r t e r . 

13 Q. I'm sorry. In the southeast quarter, Oryx \ 

14 owns 100 percent? j 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. And what was the other one? 

17 A. I n the southwest q u a r t e r , we own 50 

18 percent. 

19 Q. So the f i g u r e s I see here are f o r the south 

20 1 h a l f ? 

21 A. Y e s , s i r . 

22 Q. With respect t o the southwest q u a r t e r , i s 

23 t h a t an undivided i n t e r e s t j u s t when we look at the 

24 southwest q u a r t e r ? 

25 A. When we look at the southwest q u a r t e r , i t 
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1 i s an undivided i n t e r e s t , 

2 Q. So i f i t was a 40-acre o i l p r o r a t i o n u n i t , 

3 the percentages would be the same f o r 160-acre gas 

4 p r o r a t i o n u n i t ? 

5 A. Yes, s i r . 

6 Q. But those two would be d i f f e r e n t than a 

7 320? 

8 A. Yes , s i r . 

9 Q. But a l l the p a r t i e s t o be for c e - p o o l e d are 

10 ; P a c i f i c , BTA, and Joe Reynolds; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

I l l A. Y e s , s i r . 

12 j HEARING EXAMINER: I b e l i e v e , Mr. K e l l a h i n , 

13 you presented the o p e r a t i n g agreement w i t h t h i s 

14 ;witness? 

15 ; MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

16 ; HEARING EXAMINER: Let's r e f e r t o the 

17 overhead charges? I s i t t h a t t i m e , Mr. K e l l a h i n , or 

18 i i s your other witness going t o t e s t i f y to those? 

19 MR. KELLAHIN: No, Mr. Beers i s ready t o 

20 t e s t i f y about the overhead r a t e s , and he has r e f e r r e d 

21 t o the rat e s shown i n t h a t j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement. 

22 I b e l i e v e they were the $5,800 and the $580 r a t e s . 

23 Q. (BY HEARING EXAMINER) Would you be a 

24 l i t t l e more s p e c i f i c on how these overhead charges 

25 i were f i g u r e d , Mr. Beers? 
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1 A.. W e l l , our company puts out a l i s t of 

2 ! charges t h a t we use i n c e r t a i n areas t h a t we operate 

3 ; i n . These are the charges we use, and they were used 

4 I on two previous w e l l s we were d r i l l e d t h a t were signed 

5 ;by a l l p a r t i e s i n t h i s c u r r e n t p o o l i n g . And we f e e l 

6 t h a t they are a p p r o p r i a t e f o r t h i s w e l l . 
I 

7 1 Q. So BTA, P a c i f i c , and Joe Reynolds has 

8 ' p r e v i o u s l y approved of these overhead charges? 

9 A. Ye s, s i r . 

10 Q. Was t h a t w e l l t h a t you sa i d t h a t they had 

11 : a l l a d j o i n e d these f i g u r e s f o r , was t h a t on a fo r c e d 

12 I p o o l i n g , or was i t a l l v o l u n t a r y ? 

13 1 A. No, i t was a l l v o l u n t a r y . 

14 Q. And what was t h a t w e l l ? 

15 A. I t ' s the w e l l shown on E x h i b i t 1, being the 

16 Ojo Chiso Federal No. 1 i n the n o r t h h a l f of 26. 

17 j Q. Ojo Chiso? 

18 A. Ri g h t . 

19 Q. How long ago was t h a t ? 

20 A. That w e l l i s completing r i g h t now. We j u s t 

21 f i n i s h e d d r i l l i n g i t . 

22 Q. Do you know when the overhead charges on 

23 t h a t w e l l were assigned by a l l these p a r t i e s , roughly? 

24 A. Yes, I do. I t ' s going t o be approximately 

25 the end of Ju l y or the f i r s t of August. 
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1 Q. J u l y - A u g u s t o f 89? 

2 A. R i g h t . ! 

3 Q. And th e s e f i g u r e s appeared i n t h a t 

4 ; p a r t i c u l a r r a t e charges? i 

5 A. Yes, s i r . 

6 HEARING EXAMINER: I have no f u r t h e r i 

7 q u e s t i o n s o f t h i s w i t n e s s a t t h i s t i m e . Are t h e re any 

8 o t h e r q u e s t i o n s o f Mr. Beers? i 

9 MR. LOPEZ: Maybe i f Mr. K e l l a h i n i s g o i n g 

10 • t o go f o r w a r d , i f you c o u l d i n d u l g e me j u s t a l i t t l e 

11 i b i t , Mr. Examiner, I ' d l i k e t o ask a few more 

12 ; quest i o n s . 

13 REDIRECT EXAMINATION • 
14 BY MR. LOPEZ: 

15 Q. Mr. Beers, r e f e r r i n g t o your E x h i b i t No . 2 , 

16 ; I n o t i c e d your c o n v e r s a t i o n s w i t h t h e Reynolds g roup j 

17 go as f a r as September 16th? 

18 ! A. You mean October 16th? 

19 Q. I mean October 1 6 t h . S o r r y about t h a t . 

20 Now, my q u e s t i o n i s were not t h e s e c o n v e r s a t i o n s w i t h 

21 r e s p e c t t o t h e c o m m u n i t i z a t i o n o f a p r o r a t i o n un i t 

22 c o n s i s t i n g o f t h e west h a l f o f S e c t i o n 22? 

23 A. No, t h e y were n o t . 

24 Q. At what p o i n t i n t i m e d i d Oryx a c q u i r e t h e 

25 \ o w n e r s h i p t o t h e east h a l f of S e c t i o n 22? 
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1 A. I b e l i e v e we a c q u i r e d t h a t i n t h e August 

2 ' f e d e r a l s a l e . 

I 

3 Q. At what p o i n t d i d you d i s c u s s w i t h Reynolds 

4 j t h e f a c t t h a t you wished t o co m m u n i t i z e t h e s o u t h h a l f 

5 o f 22 r a t h e r t h a n t h e west h a l f o f 22? 

6 A. That was done on t h e f i r s t p r o p o s a l t h a t 

7 was sent o ut t o them. 

8 | Q. On September 12th? 

9 ; A. R i g h t . 

10 ! HEARING EXAMINER: I j u s t n o t i c e d s o m e thing 

11 h e r e , Mr. Beers. I'm l o o k i n g a t E x h i b i t No. 5, da t e d 

12 J u l y 2 1 , 1989, n o r t h h a l f o f S e c t i o n 26. Do we have 

13 t h e wrong o p e r a t i n g agreement? 

14 '• MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r , i t ' s t h e r i g h t 

15 one. The Ojo Chiso w e l l i s i n t h e n o r t h h a l f o f 26, 

16 i and t h a t i s t h e o p e r a t i n g agreement t h a t a l l p a r t i e s 

17 j have co m m i t t e d t o , and i t ' s t h e same one he proposes 

18 t o u t i l i z e or a t l e a s t t h e same f o r m a t f o r t h e s u b j e c t 

19 case . 

20 ' HEARING EXAMINER: I see. I m i s u n d e r s t o o d 
1 

21 t h a t . 

22 THE WITNESS: I do have a b l a n k copy i f you 

23 would l i k e i t s u b m i t t e d as a n o t h e r e x h i b i t . 
24 HEARING EXAMINER: But i t does n o t change 
25 e x c e p t t h e l o c a t i o n s ? 
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1 THE WITNESS: Ri g h t . 

2 MR. KELLAHIN: That's r i g h t . 

3 i RECROSS-EXAMINAT ION 

4 j BY HEARING EXAMINER: 

5 Q. I do have a q u e s t i o n , I see. Let's go t o 

6 page 4, not on the AFE but the o p e r a t i n g agreement. 

7 This one we covered a t e s t t o the Morrow f o r m a t i o n at 

8 13-7? 

9 A. Rig h t . This was s t r i c t l y a Morrow w e l l i n 

10 the n o r t h h a l f of 26. 

11 Q. I s i t p r e s e n t l y producing from the Atoka or 

12 the Mor row? 

13 A. No. I t ' s going t o be attempted a Morrow 

14 ; completion. 

15 HEARING EXAMINER: No other q u e s t i o n s . 

16 I s ther e a n y t h i n g else of Mr. Beers at t h i s 

17 I time? 

18 ! MR. KELLAHIN: I have none, Mr. Examiner. 

19 i HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Lopez? 

20 MR. LOPEZ: No, Mr. Examiner. 

21 HEARING EXAMINER: Thank you, Mr. Beers. 

22 ; You may be excused. 

2 3 ' Mr. K e l l a h i n ? 

24 MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I would l i k e 

25 t o i n t r o d u c e at t h i s time E x h i b i t No. 6 which i s the 
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C e r t i f i c a t e of M a i l i n g w i t h regards to the h e a r i n g . 

I t was described e a r l i e r i n the p r e s e n t a t i o n , and I ' d 

l i k e t o i n t r o d u c e i t at t h i s time as E x h i b i t No. 6. 

HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. K e l l a h i n , t h i s 

E x h i b i t No. 6, you have a C e r t i f i c a t e of Se r v i c e , a 

copy of E x h i b i t A, and then the September 25, 1989, 

l e t t e r . Was a copy of the a p p l i c a t i o n submitted at 

t h a t time? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , i t was. I simply 

d i d n ' t copy i t onto the c e r t i f i c a t e . 

HEARING EXAMINER: Thank you. Do you wish 

to admit E x h i b i t No. 6 at t h i s time? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I f you please. 

HEARING EXAMINER: Are there any 

obj e c t i o n s ? 

MR. LOPEZ: No, Mr. Hearing Examiner. 

HEARING EXAMINER: E x h i b i t 6 w i l l be 

admitted i n t o evidence at t h i s t i m e . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, at t h i s time I 

would l i k e to c a l l Oryx' g e o l o g i c a l w i t n e s s , Miss 

Shelley Lane. 

SHELLEY LANE, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d uly sworn 

upon her oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 
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! 

1 BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

2 Q. Miss Lane, f o r the r e c o r d , would you please 

3 , s t a t e your name and occu p a t i o n . 

4 : A. Yes. Shelley Lane. I'm a g e o l o g i s t f o r 

5 \ Oryx Energy i n Midland, Texas. 

6 Q. Miss Lane, on p r i o r occasions have you 

7 t e s t i f i e d as a petroleum g e o l o g i s t before the 

8 D i v i s i o n ? 

9 A. Yes, s i r . 

10 Q. Would you summarize your p a r t i c u l a r 

11 1 involvement w i t h regards to what has been i d e n t i f i e d 

12 by your company as t h i s Antelope Ridge prospect? 

13 A. Yes, s i r . I began working the area about a 

14 l i t t l e over a year ago, and my area of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y 

15 does i n c l u d e Lea County, New Mexico. So I've been 

16 ; i n v o l v e d w i t h the prospect a l i t t l e over a year. 

17 Q. Were you i n v o l v e d as a g e o l o g i s t on behalf 

18 of your company f o r what has been i d e n t i f i e d as the 

19 Sun Federal Com No. 1 Well i n the south h a l f of 

20 Section 27 as shown on E x h i b i t No. 1? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. Were you also i n v o l v e d i n the Ojo Chiso 

23 'Federal Well No. 1 i n the n o r t h h a l f of 26? 

24 A. Y e s , s i r . 

25 Q. When we i d e n t i f y the Antelope Ridge 
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1 prospect area, i s i t an area t h a t i s i d e n t i f i e d on 

2 E x h i b i t No. 7? 

i 

3 j A. Yes, s i r . 

4 Q. E x h i b i t No. 7 i s your s t r u c t u r e map on the 

5 ; A t o k a ; a l l r i g h t ? 
i 

6 A. Okay. 
7 1 Q. Has i t been your personal r e s p o n s i b i l i t y to 
8 j p i c k the l o c a t i o n and the spacing u n i t f o r the su b j e c t 

9 Antelope Ridge No. 2 w e l l as p a r t of the hearing i n 

10 t h i s case? 

1 1 ; A. Y e s , s i r . 

12 : MR. KELLAHIN: At t h i s t i m e , Mr. Examiner, 

13 we tender Miss Lane as an expert petroleum g e o l o g i s t . 

14 HEARING EXAMINER: Are there any 

15 obj ect ions? 

16 MR. LOPEZ: No o b j e c t i o n s . 

17 HEARING EXAMINER: Miss Lane i s so 

18 q u a l i f i e d . 

19 Q. (BY MR. KELLAHIN) Let me have you take 

20 E x h i b i t No. 7, Miss Lane, and i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r us. 

21 A. Yes. This i s a s t r u c t u r e map on the Atoka 

22 'C Lime. I t covers about a 16 square-mile area 

23 surrounding the Antelope Ridge and Ojo Chiso f i e l d s , 

24 and i t does i n c l u d e Section 22, which i s the s e c t i o n 

25 i n quest ion . 
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1 The w e l l s are i d e n t i f i e d as gas w e l l s or 

2 -. dry holes i n t h i s area. 

3 Q. I s t h i s a s t r u c t u r a l i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the 

4 ; Atoka t h a t you have p e r s o n a l l y made y o u r s e l f ? 

5 A. Yes, i t i s . 

6 Q. What i s the i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t you u t i l i z e d 

7 ; by which to i n t e r p r e t the Atoka s t r u c t u r e ? 

8 A. This i s based on subsurface pick s on l o g s . 

9 Q. Did you u t i l i z e the i n f o r m a t i o n a v a i l a b l e 

10 ; from the Sun Federal Com No. 1 Well i n the south h a l f 

11 | of 27? 

12 A. Yes, I d i d . 

13 Q. Did you have any i n f o r m a t i o n a v a i l a b l e t o 

14 ; you from the Ojo Chiso w e l l i n the n o r t h h a l f of 26? 

15 A. That w e l l was not logged at the time t h i s 

16 e x h i b i t was prepared. 

17 Q. Do you have the logs now on t h a t w e l l ? 

18 A. Yes. And I do b e l i e v e t h a t the s t r u c t u r e 

19 does a c c u r a t e l y r e f l e c t the Atoka C on t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

20 one. 

21 Q. That a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n then d i d n ' t 

22 cause you to r e i n t e r p r e t or change the i n t e r p r e t a t i o n 

23 of the Atoka s t r u c t u r e ? 

24 A. No, s i r . 

25 Q. Why have you u t i l i z e d the Atoka s t r u c t u r e 
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1 as p a r t of your g e o l o g i c a l e v a l u a t i o n of t h i s 

2 i p a r t i c u l a r w e l l l o c a t i o n ? 

3 ! A. The Atoka s t r u c t u r e does seem t o have some 

4 ! s l i g h t i n f l u e n c e on p r o d u c t i o n and also the th i c k n e s s 

5 : of the Atoka lime i n the area. 
l 

i 

6 j I f y o u ' l l n o t i c e , the w e l l s t h a t are 

7 c i r c l e d i n red are the Atoka producers. A l l of those 

8 w e l l s are p r i m a r i l y on the f l a n k s of t h i s s t r u c t u r e . 

9 And y o u ' l l see on the next e x h i b i t , f o r i n s t a n c e , i n 

10 Section 34, the No. 2 w e l l has about 30 f e e t of pay, 

11 : and the No. 1 w e l l has about 10 f e e t of pay, and t h a t 

12 | i s a r e s u l t of moving up on s t r u c t u r e , and you're 

13 ! l o s i n g p o r o s i t y t h e r e . 

14 Q. Let's go t o your isopach, which i s E x h i b i t 

15 No. 8. I t h i n k i t ' s h e l p f u l t o look at those 

16 t o g e t h e r . Por the r e c o r d , would you i d e n t i f y f o r us 

17 E x h i b i t No. 8? 

18 A. Yes. This i s on the same base map as the 

19 s t r u c t u r e map. This r e f l e c t s Atoka p o r o s i t y g r e a t e r 

20 than 4 percent. 

21 Q. Again, t h i s i s also your ge o l o g i c 

22 i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the Atoka p o r o s i t y ? 

23 A. R i g h t , based on l o g e v a l u a t i o n s , again. 
24 Q. Let's look at 7 and 8 toge t h e r and have you 
25 : assess f o r us the geol o g i c conclusions you reach when 
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you i n t e r p r e t both the s t r u c t u r e and the isopach as i t 

in v o l v e s Section 22. 

A. Ri g h t . As I st a t e d b e f o r e , s t r u c t u r e does 

have some s l i g h t i n f l u e n c e , and i t does appear t h a t 

the p r o d u c t i o n i s on the f l a n k s of t h i s s t r u c t u r e . 

That may not be the case i n a l l i n s t a n c e s , but i t i s a 

general c o n c l u s i o n t h a t you can draw. 

The other t h i n g t o note i s t h a t t h e r e i s 

r e a l l y no c o n t r o l to the no r t h or to the west of us. 

Now, Oryx and BTA d i d r e c e n t l y d r i l l a w e l l up i n 

Section 16, and t h a t was d r i l l e d as p r i m a r i l y an Atoka 

t e s t and encountered no Atoka. So we r e a l l y have no 

evidence t o extend the Atoka- any f u r t h e r than i t i s 

extended on my map. 

And based on the l o g a n a l y s i s i n the area, 

we do t h i n k t h a t the m a j o r i t y of the r e s e r v o i r i s 

l i m i t e d t o the south h a l f of 22, which compels me to 

form or t r y t o form a south h a l f p r o r a t i o n u n i t . 

Q. I s the primary geologic f o r m a t i o n t h a t 

you're seeking t o penetrate the Atoka formation? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. What i s the l i k e l y o p p o r t u n i t y t o have a 

suc c e s s f u l Morrow completion i n t h i s immediate area? 

A. I f we hdo not encounter the Atoka, we would 

l i k e t o continue d r i l l i n g t o the Morrow. I t h i n k you 
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1 ;would have to assess the r i s k of what chance do you 

2 \ have of g e t t i n g an Atoka w e l l . I would say t h a t would 

3 j be about 50 percent. And then once you d r i l l t h a t , i f 

4 i you do not encounter Atoka, then I t h i n k your Morrow 

5 i 
: p o s s i b i l i t y 

would be even less than t h a t . 

6 ! Q. How do I i d e n t i f y by l o o k i n g at e i t h e r one 

7 of these d i s p l a y s any w e l l s t h a t c u r r e n t l y produce 

8 from the Morrow formation? 

9 A. The Morrow producers are the gas w e l l s t h a t 

10 1 have no c o l o r coding on them. 
i 

11 Q. So i f we look at e i t h e r d i s p l a y then and 

12 f i n d the ones w i t h the red c i r c l e s , those represent 

13 Atoka producers? 

14 A. Ri g h t . 

15 Q. Do any of those c i r c l e s w i t h red c i r c l e s 

16 also have Morrow p r o d u c t i o n c u r r e n t l y being produced 

17 from those w e l l s ? 

18 A. No, they do not . 

19 Q. I f we look at the w e l l symbols t h a t are not 

20 c i r c l e d i n red, those represent Morrow wel l s ? 

21 A. That 1s c o r r e c t . 

22 Q. Let's look at the w e l l l o c a t i o n i t s e l f . 

23 A. Okay. 

24 Q. The primary means by which you have 

25 determined the l o c a t i o n i s t o pick the best p o i n t 
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1 a f t e r e v a l u a t i n g the geology f o r the Atoka? 

2 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

3 Q. Where i s t h a t l o c a t i o n ? 

4 ; A. That l o c a t i o n i s 1,090 f e e t from the south 

5 l i n e and 990 from the west l i n e . 

6 ! Q. That i s an unorthodox gas w e l l l o c a t i o n , i s 

7 i t not? 

8 A. Yes, i t i s . 

9 Q. You are too close to the western 

10 boundaries, i f you w i l l , f o r standard w e l l spacing f o r 

11 ;deep gas we l l s ? 

12 ! A. That's c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. And you would be encroaching towards the 

14 same p a r t i e s t h a t are i n v o l v e d i n the p o o l i n g case? 

15 ! A. Yes. 

16 Q. You're d e a l i n g w i t h P a c i f i c , BTA, and 

17 Reynolds, are you not? 

18 • A. That's c o r r e c t . 

19 Q. What causes you to reach the c o n c l u s i o n 

20 t h a t the proposed unorthodox l o c a t i o n i s the optimum 

21 l o c a t i o n over the nearest standard l o c a t i o n ? 

22 A. I t ' s e s s e n t i a l l y based on l o o k i n g at a 

23 t r e n d . The t h i c k t h a t you see i n the w e l l i n the 

24 south h a l f of 27, t h a t ' s the t h i c k e s t p o r o s i t y t h a t 

25 : we've encountered. I f I j u s t l i n e t h a t t r e n d up w i t h 

i 
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-- and then move my tr e n d i n between the w e l l t h a t has 

31 f e e t of p o r o s i t y i n the southeast of Section 34, 

and then the w e l l t h a t has 35 f e e t of p o r o s i t y i n the 

southwest of Section 35, i f you j u s t l a i d your p e n c i l 

down t h e r e and looked at the t r e n d , t h a t ' s where you 

want t o qo. That's the l o c a t i o n t o p i c k . 

Q. Have you been the primary i n d i v i d u a l , 

e i t h e r engineer or geol o g i c employee of your company, 

t h a t has d e a l t w i t h the other working i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Have you had conversat i o n s w i t h a l l of the 

other working i n t e r e s t owners i n the proposed w e l l ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Have any of those p a r t i e s o b j e c t e d t o your 

proposed unorthodox l o c a t i o n ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. In f a c t , t h ere's agreement t h a t t h i s i s the 

optimum l o c a t i o n , i s i t not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When we look at the r i s k f a c t o r t h a t the 

examiner i s allowed under the s t a t u t e to award i n a 

po o l i n g case, t h a t maximum percentage i s 200 percent 

plus the cost of the w e l l . You understand t h a t , don't 

you ? 

A. Yes, yes. 
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1 Q. I n terms of t h a t s t a t u t o r y maximum, do you 

2 i have a geol o g i c o p i n i o n as t o what percentage you 

3 : would recommend to the examiner to i n c l u d e i n the 

4 ; p o o l i n g order w i t h regards to the Atoka p a r t i c i p a t i o n ? 

5 A. Yes. I would recommend the 200 percent 

6 ! pena1ty. 

7 Q. What i s the basis upon which you reach t h a t 

8 conclusion? 

9 A. The basis i s t h a t we are extending t h i s 

10 Antelope Ridge Pool to the n o r t h . We have no c o n t r o l 

11 t o the n o r t h f o r e s s e n t i a l l y a m i l e or a 

12 m i l e - a n d - a - h a l f , and we are l o o k i n g at q u i t e a l o t of 

13 r i s k since we do not have any p r o d u c t i o n to the n o r t h 

14 and to the west of us. 

15 Q. Is the r e a d i r e c t or i n d i r e c t r e l a t i o n s h i p 

16 i n terms of the th i c k n e s s of the Atoka f o r m a t i o n t o 

17 the p r o d u c t i v i t y of the w e l l ? 

18 j A. Yes, s i r , there i s , based on v o l u m e t r i c s --

19 Q. There's a d i r e c t or an i n d i r e c t ? I t ' s a 

20 d i r e c t r e l a t i o n ? 

21 A. I t ' s a d i r e c t -- I don't know i f I can 

22 r e a l l y say whether i t ' s d i r e c t or i n d i r e c t . I'm not a 

23 r e s e r v o i r engineer. But I know t h a t we do evaluate 

24 the w e l l s and the recoverable reserves based on 

25 ; v o l u m e t r i c s , which i n c l u d e s a n e t - f e e t - o f - p a y f a c t o r , 
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1 ! which i s based on the t h i c k n e s s . 
i 

2 Q. In e v a l u a t i n g the geology i n terms of 
i 

3 t h i c k n e s s of the r e s e r v o i r — 

4 | A. Rig h t . 

5 Q. -- do you f i n d any r e l a t i o n s h i p between the 

6 ! t h i c k n e s s of o f f s e t t i n g w e l l s and t h e i r corresponding 

7 ' p r o d u c t i v i t y ? 

8 A. Yes. You could look as case i n p o i n t at 

9 ;the w e l l s i n Section 34, and the w e l l t h a t has 11 f e e t 

10 of pay has only produced about 178 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t , 

11 and the w e l l t h a t has 31 f e e t of pay has produced, I 

12 b e l i e v e , something around 750 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t and 

13 ; i s s t i l l p roducing. 

14 Q. Let me i n v i t e your a t t e n t i o n t o Section 35 

15 south and east of the proposed w e l l l o c a t i o n i n 22. 

16 Do you f i n d Section 35? 

17 ; A. Yes. 

18 Q. There are two gas w e l l s i n the northwest 

19 q u a r t e r ? 

20 A. Ri g h t . 

21 Q. You see one w i t h 17 f e e t and one w i t h 4 

22 fee t ? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. What's the corresponding q u a l i t y of each of 

25 those w e l l s ? 
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1 ; A. The w e l l t h a t has four f e e t of pay i s 

2 c u r r e n t l y a Morrow producer and has not been t e s t e d i n 

3 \ the Atoka; so we don't know what i t s p r o d u c t i v i t y 

4 j might be from t h a t f o u r f e e t of pay. 

5 We do know t h a t i n t h a t short d i s t a n c e of 

6 moving something less than 1,500 f e e t , you have, i n 

7 I e f f e c t , t r i p l e d your pay. So you do lose pay i n a 

8 short d i s t a n c e i n t h i s area, which adds t o the r i s k . 

9 Q. I f you f o l l o w those contour l i n e s around, 

10 and you get to your proposed unorthodox l o c a t i o n , 

11 you're s l i g h t l y above the 20-foot contour l i n e i n 

12 terras of thickness? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 | Q. In your o p i n i o n , i s t h a t the optimum 

15 l o c a t i o n w i t h i n the e n t i r e s e t i o n i n which t o place 

16 the Atoka w e l l ? 

17 A. Y e s , s i r . 

18 Q. Let's t a l k about the Morrow. Have you 

19 shared w i t h BTA and Reynolds and P a c i f i c , any of t h e i r 

20 pe r s o n n e l , your proposal t h a t t h i s w e l l , i f 

21 unsuccessful i n the Atoka, be d r i l l e d down t o and 

22 t e s t e d i n the Morrow? 

23 A. Yes, s i r . We began d i s c u s s i o n s about 

24 d r i l l i n g t o the Atoka, and then i f t h a t was d r y , t o 

25 ; continue on t o the Morrow a f t e r we d r i l l e d our Sun 
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1 ;Federal Com i n the south h a l f of 27. 

2 We intended t h a t w e l l t o go t o the Morrow 

3 f o r m a t i o n , but we encountered such high pressures i n 

4 | the Atoka and had to use such heavy mud weights t h a t 

5 t we stopped above the Morrow because we thought i f we 
I 

6 I p e n e t r a t e d the Morrow w i t h t h a t heavy mud, we would 
7 'damage the f o r m a t i o n . I 

i ! 

! 

8 So we have chosen t o set up the other Atoka 

9 w e l l s i n t h i s area, set up our d r i l l i n g program 

10 s i m i l a r to the way we handled the Sun Fed Com, which i 

11 i s to d r i l l to the Atoka. And then i f t h a t i s d r y , we j 

12 w i l l continue on d r i l l i n a t o the Morrow. j 

13 And the cost d i f f e r e n c e , i f you encounter a 

14 dry Atoka, or you do not encounter Atoka, the cost 

15 d i f f e r e n c e to d r i l l on to the Morrow i s only about 

16 $15,000 more. And the reason f o r t h a t i s you do not 

17 ! have t h a t high b i l l f o r the mud to c o n t r o l the 

18 pressure i n the Atoka. 
19 Q. Have you shared your plan of d r i l l i n g w i t h 

20 r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s from Mr. Joe Reynolds' o f f i c e ? 

21 A. Yes, s i r , we have. 

22 Q. Who s p e c i f i c a l l y have you t o l d your plan of 

23 o p e r a t i o n of the su b j e c t w e l l to? 

24 A. I b e l i e v e I've t a l k e d t o David Pace and 

25 also the Reynolds group, J e f f Reynolds and Joe 
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1 ; Reynolds, i n Lubbock. I've t a l k e d t o a l l of them 

2 : concerning s e v e r a l w e l l s i n the area, and t h i s issue 

3 has d e f i n i t e l y come up. 

4 Q. You have s p e c i f i c a l l y t o l d them then of 

5 your proposed i n t e n t i o n t o d r i l l down through and t e s t 

6 ! the Morrow i n the event the Atoka i s unsuccessful? 

7 A. Yes, s i r . 

8 Q. Have any of the employees, per s o n n e l , or 

9 i i n t e r e s t owners i n the Joe Reynolds group o b j e c t e d t o 

10 ; t h a t plan? 

H i A . No, s i r . 

12 Q. When we look at the Section 22, the next 

13 t o p i c I want t o discuss w i t h you i s the o r i e n t a t i o n of 

14 | t h a t spacing u n i t . I would i n v i t e your a t t e n t i o n t o 

15 the w e l l symbol i n the southeast q u a r t e r of Section 

16 ; 22 . 

17 A. Yes, s i r . 

18 : Q. What i s t h a t ? 

19 ; A. That's a dry hole t h a t was d r i l l e d by 

20 Apache i n 1987. 

21 Q. A dry hole i n what formation? 

22 A. I t penetr a t e d the Morrow, and they d i d t e s t 

23 :-- they a c t u a l l y p e r f o r a t e d Morrow, Atoka, and Strawn, 

24 and the scout t i c k e t does not have any mention of any 

25 : s o r t of r a t e s . They d i d t r y to s t i m u l a t e , and the 
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1 w e l l was then dry and abandoned. 

2 Q. In terms of ass i g n i n g values t o the v a r i o u s 
i 

3 j q u a r t e r s e c t i o n s w i t h i n 22 --

4 ! A. Yes. 

5 Q. Let's examine your g e o l o g i c o p i n i o n of the 

6 j a b i l i t y of the northwest q u a r t e r of 22 to add 

7 p r o d u c t i v e acreage to the w e l l . 

8 ; A. I have no i n d i c a t i o n t h a t the northwest 

9 qu a r t e r of Section 22 has any p o r o s i t y or t h a t the 

10 Atoka extends t h a t f a r n o r t h . 

11 Q. What, i n your o p i n i o n as a g e o l o g i s t , i s 

12 j the o r i e n t a t i o n of the 320 acres t h a t most c l o s e l y 

13 ; approximates the g r e a t e s t r e s e r v o i r volume i n the 

14 Atoka formation? 

15 A. That would be the south h a l f of 22. 

16 Q. Has t h a t been a t o p i c of co n v e r s a t i o n 

17 between you and members of the Joe Reynolds' i n t e r e s t ? 

1 8 ; A. Y e s , i t has. 

19 Q. What have you s p e c i f i c a l l y discussed w i t h 

20 them? 

21 A. We discussed the o r i e n t a t i o n , and David 

22 Pace, who i s t h e i r g e o l o g i s t , expressed a d e s i r e to 

23 form a west h a l f u n i t . I t o l d them t h a t I d i d n ' t show 

24 any net pay i n the northwest q u a r t e r . And he said he 

25 d i d n ' t show any pay there e i t h e r , but he also d i d not 
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1 | show any pay i n the southeast q u a r t e r . I t o l d them 

2 t h a t my map d i d show pay i n the southeast q u a r t e r , and 

3 so t h a t compelled me t o l a y the u n i t down. 

4 Q. Did you discuss w i t h Mr. Pace or any of the 

5 Reynolds group personnel what t h e i r o p i n i o n was of the 

6 I w e l l t h a t ' s i d e n t i f i e d as a dry hole i n the southeast 

7 qu a r t e r of 22? 

8 A. Yes. P r i o r to the proposal of t h i s w e l l i n 

9 general d i s c u s s i o n s of t h i s area, Mr. Pace and Mr. 

10 | Reynolds have both t o l d me t h a t they d i d not b e l i e v e 

11 t h a t t h a t w e l l was a c c u r a t e l y r e f l e c t e d as a dry 

12 h o l e . I t h i n k they may have been p a r t n e r s i n i t or 

13 had some contact w i t h i t , and they thought t h a t the 

14 w e l l should have been p r o d u c t i v e , but t h a t i t was 

15 damaged d u r i n g c o m p l e t i o n . 

16 Q. When we look at the Atoka f o r m a t i o n , what, 

17 i n your o p i n i o n , would you recommend t o the examiner 

18 as the r i s k f a c t o r p e n a l t y t o assess against 

19 nonconsenting working i n t e r e s t owners? 

20 A. I t would be the 200 percent p e n a l t y . 

21 Q. With regards t o the Morrow formation? 

22 A. I t would also be the 200 percent p e n a l t y . 

23 Q. I n f a c t , the Morrow i s more r i s k i e r than 

24 the Atoka, i s i t not? 

25 A. Y e s , s i r . 
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1 Q. Let's go t o an examination of your cross-

2 i s e c t i o n s , Miss Lane. I t h i n k I have s e l e c t e d the A-A' 

3 | as the f i r s t one o f f the top of the e x h i b i t package. 

4 A. Rig h t . That w i l l be the only one f o r t h i s 

5 case. I t ' s the Atoka c r o s s - s e c t i o n , since i t ' s the 

6 primary o b j e c t i v e . 

7 Q. Let me mark t h a t as E x h i b i t No. 9 then. 

8 Describe f o r us why you have s e l e c t e d the p a r t i c u l a r 

9 w e l l s t h a t you have shown i n your c r o s s - s e c t i o n . 

10 A. Yes. This i s a no r t h - s o u t h c r o s s - s e c t i o n , 

11 which passes through Section 22, and i t does 

12 i i n c o r p o r a t e the dry hole i n Section 22. The 

13 c r o s s - s e c t i o n i s l i m i t e d t o the Strawn and the Atoka 

14 for m a t i o n s v e r t i c a l l y . 

15 These w e l l s are e s s e n t i a l l y s e l e c t e d t o 

16 i show t h a t to the n o r t h , we r e a l l y do not know how f a r 

17 the Atoka extends. We don't b e l i e v e i t extends 

18 f a r t h e r than the south h a l f of Section 22. And then 

19 i t does encompass the w e l l t h a t we r e c e n t l y completed, 

20 'the Sun Fed e r a l , which d i d have a s i g n i f i c a n t amount 

21 of pay i n the Atoka. 

22 Q. I d e n t i f y f o r us what i s the s i g n i f i c a n c e of 

23 the areas shown w i t h the blue shade. 

24 A. The blue-shaded area i s the Atoka limestone 

25 i n t e r v a l t h a t produces, and the p e r f o r a t i o n s are 
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i 

j 

, i 

1 ; marked on the Sun Fed Com and also on the Maxus well, \ 

2 j which i s t o the south i n Section 34. And the red then j 

3 i d e n t i f i e s the p o r o s i t y i n the Atoka g r e a t e r than 4 j 
4 per cent. 

5 1 Q. Would you double-check your d i s p l a y f o r me 

6 ! and make sure t h a t we have the c o r r e c t i d e n t i f i c a t i o n s 

7 at the bottom of each of the logs f o r t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

8 E x h i b i t No. 9? 

9 I A. Yes, these are c o r r e c t . 

10 Q. How does t h i s i n t e g r a t e i t s e l f i n t o your 

11 i conclusions w i t h regards t o l o c a t i o n and r i s k f a c t o r 

12 p e n a l t i e s ? 

13 A. I t does show t h a t to the n o r t h there i s a 

14 l a r g e degree of u n c e r t a i n t y as t o how f a r the Atoka 

15 c o n t i n u e s . I t also shows t h a t moving i t from one mi l e 

16 ;-- j u s t one mi l e away, the Sun Federal encountered 50 

17 f e e t of p o r o s i t y , and then the Maxus w e l l encountered 

18 only 11 f e e t of p o r o s i t y . So t h e r e i s a s i g n i f i c a n t 

19 ; amount of r i s k i n d r i l l i n g t o t h i s Atoka f o r m a t i o n . 

20 MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, t h a t concludes 

21 my examination of Miss Lane. 

22 I move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of her E x h i b i t s 7, 

23 8 and 9 . 

24 HEARING EXAMINER: E x h i b i t s 7, 8, and 9 

25 \ w i l l be admitted i n t o evidence, i f ther e are no 
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1 obj e c t i o n s . 
i 
i 

2 j MR. LOPEZ: There are no o b j e c t i o n s . 
i 

3 i HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Lopez, your w i t n e s s . 

4 MR. LOPEZ: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

5 i CROSS-EXAMINATION 

6 ; BY MR. LOPEZ: 

7 ' Q. Miss Lane, r e f e r r i n g t o the w e l l t h a t you 

8 j have j u s t r e c e n t l y completed i n the n o r t h h a l f of 26, 

9 i s th e r e any Atoka p r o d u c t i o n i n t h a t w e l l ? 

10 A. No, s i r , t h e r e i s no t . 

11 Q. So t h a t i s a Morrow producer? 

12 j A. I t ' s not yet been t e s t e d . I t ' s i n the 

13 |process of comple t i n g . 

14 Q. Do you expect i t to be a Morrow producer? 

15 < A. Yes, I do. 

16 Q. So i f I understand your e x h i b i t c o r r e c t l y , 

17 \ i t would seem t h a t the Morrow w e l l s on your map are 

18 s i t u a t e d on the eastern side of the p l a t , and the 

19 Atokas are more i n the c e n t r a l or western p a r t i n the 

20 area t h a t you've i n d i c a t e d ? 

21 A. Yes, s i r . 

22 Q. I'd l i k e now to discuss the dry hole t h a t 

23 was d r i l l e d i n the southeast q u a r t e r of Section 22. 

24 When you had these d i s c u s s i o n s w i t h Mr. 

25 Pace, and he i n d i c a t e d t h a t he thought the w e l l was 
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1 damaged, the damage occurred i n the Morrow, d i d i t 

2 ! n o t , and d i d he not agree t h a t the Atoka i n t h a t w e l l 

3 \ was, i n f a c t , dry? 

4 A. We d i d s p e c i f i c a l l y discuss the Morrow, and 

5 we t a l k e d about the Morrow being damaged d u r i n g 

6 : complet i o n . 

7 Now, the Atoka t h a t occurs and t h a t was 

8 t e s t e d i n t h a t what w e l l i s not e q u i v a l e n t t o the 

9 Atoka t h a t we are l o o k i n g at here. 

10 I b e l i e v e i n t a l k i n g w i t h Mr. Joe Reynolds, 

11 i he d i d t h i n k t h a t the Atoka would have produced i n 

12 t h a t w e l l , but i t i s not an e q u i v a l e n t Atoka zone. 

13 Q. I'm not sure I understand what you mean. 

14 jDoes t h a t mean t h a t the Atoka was commercial or 

15 noncommercial? I assume i f i t were commercial, i t 

16 | would have been put on production? 

17 ; A. Rig h t . 

18 : Q. So e s s e n t i a l l y , i f I understand you 

19 c o r r e c t l y , at l e a s t w i t h what we are d i s c u s s i n g the 

20 Atoka f o r our purposes i s dry i n the southeast 

21 q u a r t e r ? 

22 A. Yes. That's what I've i n d i c a t e d w i t h t h a t 
i 

23 \ zero. The zone t h a t was t e s t e d was not e q u i v a l e n t t o 

24 ; the zone we are l o o k i n g f o r i n the proposed l o c a t i o n . 

25 Q. Looking at t h i s isopach map, t h e r e i s no 
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1 j w e l l c o n t r o l i n Section 22 or i n any se c t i o n s n o r t h of 

2 Section 27 t h a t would c o n f i r m t h a t the Atoka i s 

3 1 present i n Section 22 or Section 21, f o r t h a t m a tter; 

4 ! i s t h a t not c o r r e c t ? 

5 A. That ' s c o r r e c t . 

6 Q. So we could reach c l o s u r e w i t h i n Section 27 

7 , j u s t as 
I 

e a s i l y ; i s t h a t not c o r r e c t ? 

8 
1 
1 ' A . Yes , s i r . 

9 Q. When the w e l l i n the south h a l f of 27 was 

10 j d r i l l e d , what was the l a s t w e l l c o n t r o l you had w i t h 

11 respect to the Atoka production? 

12 A. I t was the M a t t i x B2 w e l l , which i s i n 

13 :Section 35. The w e l l was 17 f e e t of pay or p o r o s i t y . 

14 Q. So, i f I understand c o r r e c t l y aqain, but 

15 I f o r the f a c t t h a t you d r i l l e d the w e l l i n the south 

16 h a l f of 27, you have not known n e c e s s a r i l y t h a t the 

17 Atoka extended on t h i s what seems t o be a northwest 

18 t r e n d i n t o Section 27? 

19 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

20 Q. Since you've d r i l l e d the w e l l i n the south 

21 h a l f of 27, as I understood Mr. Beers' t e s t i m o n y , the 

22 next two w e l l s Oryx intends t o d r i l l , a p p a r e n t l y 

23 s i m u l t a n e o u s l y , are i n the n o r t h h a l f of 27 and then 

24 the south h a l f of 26; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

25 A. Yes , s i r . 

CUMBRE COURT REPORTING 
(505) 984-2244 



53 

1 Q. Would you e x p l a i n why i t would not be more 

2 prudent to await the r e s u l t s of the d r i l l i n g of those 

3 | two w e l l s , p a r t i c u l a r l y the w e l l i n the n o r t h h a l f of 

4 ! 27, before d e c i d i n g what kind of c o n f i g u r a t i o n a 

5 ' p r o r a t i o n u n i t should be i n Section 22? 

6 A. Yes, s i r . With regard t o the w e l l i n 26, 

7 ; as you s t a t e d , or as you a l l u d e d t o , the w e l l i n the 

8 i south h a l f of 26 has no b e a r i n g , i n my o p i n i o n , at 

9 a l l . 

10 But i f we t a l k about the w e l l i n the n o r t h 

11 h a l f of Section 27, what our proposal -- what Oryx 

12 : would propose to do i s d r i l l the w e l l i n 27, and 

13 w i t h i n 48 hours of l o o k i n g at the l o g s , we would l i k e 

14 a l l the p a r t n e r s to make t h e i r e l e c t i o n on the w e l l i n 

15 the south h a l f of Section 22. And the reason f o r t h a t 

16 i i s we would l i k e t o move the r i g from the n o r t h h a l f 

17 of Section 27 up t o the proposed l o c a t i o n i n the south 

18 h a l f of Section 22. 

19 And the reason f o r t h a t i s because we can 

20 extend our d r i l l i n g c o n t r a c t , which w i l l g i v e us 

21 cheaper d r i l l i n g c o s t s , and we can also save some 

22 money on the r i g move. And we b e l i e v e t h a t l o g 

23 a n a l y s i s w i l l a l l o w us t o e f f e c t i v e l y evaluate the 

24 : w e l l i n 27. We don't f e e l a need t o see i t completed 

25 and produced before we move t o the south h a l f of 

i 
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1 Section 22. 
j 

2 ; Q. Miss Lane, I guess the p o i n t I'm t r y i n g to 

3 imake i s t h a t i f , as we a l l would hope and expect, t h a t 

4 the w e l l d r i l l e d i n the n o r t h h a l f of 27 i s a 

5 ; s u c c e s s f u l Atoka producer, why wouldn't i t be more 
j 

6 I l o g i c a l and i n the i n t e r e s t s of p r o t e c t i n g c o r r e l a t i v e 

7 ' r i g h t s to determine t h a t a p r o r a t i o n u n i t c o n s i s t i n g 

8 . of the west h a l f of 22 and another one c o n s i s t i n g 

9 perhaps of the east h a l f of 21 would not be more 

10 l o g i c a l i n the sense that, t h i s t r e n d could c o n t i n u e , 

11 las we've i n d i c a t e d i t already has, i n a n o r t h w e s t e r l y 

12 | d i r e c t i o n , i n d i c a t i n g t h a t the northwest h a l f of 22 at 

13 l e a s t has the p o t e n t i a l f o r being p r o d u c t i v e i n the 

14 Atoka when we know t h a t the southeast q u a r t e r of 

15 Section 22 has already been condemned by a dry whole? 

16 A. Number one i s I don't t h i n k the e n t i r e 

17 southeast q u a r t e r of Section 22 has been condemned by 

18 a dry h o l e . And the second t h i n g would be t h a t I 

19 don't b e l i e v e t h a t the w e l l i n the n o r t h h a l f of 27 i s 

20 going t o give you any more i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t ' s going t o 

21 a l l o w you to extend t h a t r e s e r v o i r to the northwest of 

22 Sect ion 22 . 

23 I would not see any change i n the 
24 ; o r i e n t a t i o n of the proposed u n i t s even a f t e r we d r i l l 
25 the w e l l i n the n o r t h h a l f of Section 27. 
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1 ; Q. I f i t were a dry h o l e , t h a t may change 

2 i plans r a d i c a l l y ? 

3 A. I f i t were a dry h o l e , then t h i s proposed 

4 ; l o c a t i o n would not be d r i l l e d . And t h a t ' s why we've 

5 said we would l i k e to see the l o g s , and then w i t h i n 48 

6 hours have p a r t n e r s make an e l e c t i o n then. 

7 We r e a l i z e t h a t we cannot ask p a r t n e r s t o 

8 ; make an e l e c t i o n r i g h t now i n the w e l l i n 22 u n t i l 

9 , they do see the logs i n the n o r t h h a l f of 27. And i f 

10 | t h a t i s a dry h o l e , then I don't b e l i e v e t h a t Oryx 

11 i would d r i l l the proposed l o c a t i o n . 

12 Q. I guess t h a t was my p o i n t e x a c t l y . 

13 Wouldn't i t be f a i r e r , at l e a s t f o r the p a r t i c i p a n t s 

14 i n the w e l l i n Section 22, t o be allowed an 

15 o p p o r t u n i t y t o evaluate the r e s u l t s of the w e l l i n the 

16 n o r t h h a l f of 27 even though I understand t h a t the 

17 economics of moving a r i g immediately might be more 

18 ! cost e f f e c t i v e ? I j u s t wonder how much weight we 

19 should give to the cost e f f e c t i v e n e s s of such a move 

20 compared t o whether or not c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s might 

21 otherwise be v i o l a t e d i n terms of the o r i e n t a t i o n of 

22 the p r o r a t i o n u n i t . 

23 j MR. KELLAHIN: I s t h a t a que s t i o n or a 

24 : speech. 

25 \ MR. LOPEZ: I t h i n k i t was a q u e s t i o n . 
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1 ; THE WITNESS: Could you ask me j u s t one 

2 question or something s p e c i f i c because I've r e a l l y 

3 j g o t t e n l o s t ? 
i 

4 ; Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) I assume t h a t you heard 

5 t h a t I requested a continuance of t h i s case because i t 

6 |was premature to determine whether or not our c l i e n t 

7 should e l e c t t o j o i n on a v o l u n t a r y basis i n a w e l l 

8 proposed to be d r i l l e d i n Section 22 u n t i l a w e l l i n 

9 ;27 was d r i l l e d . 

10 My question i s does the f a c t t h a t you want 

11 to move a r i g w i t h i n 48 hours because i t ' s cost 

12 ! e f f e c t i v e outweigh the r i g h t s of a p a r t y to have 

13 s u f f i c i e n t time t o make a prudent d e c i s i o n as t o 

14 whether or not to j o i n i n a w e l l i n 22? 

15 A. W e l l , i n c o n s i d e r i n g t h a t Oryx has 75 

16 percent of the proposed u n i t , and we're w i l l i n g t o , 

17 j w i t h our 75 percent i n t e r e s t , take the r i s k of moving 

18 t h a t up t h e r e , and your c l i e n t has 6-1/4 pe r c e n t , t o 

19 me, a l l p a r t i e s have been made aware of our aggressive 

20 d r i l l i n g program and what we want to do i n the area. 

21 I f we're w i l l i n g t o spend our 75 percent of 

22 : t h i s $1.3 m i l l i o n , and we f e e l c o n f i d e n t enough to 

23 move the r i g , then I t h i n k t h a t the other p a r t i e s 
24 should f o l l o w s u i t and be able t o make t h e i r e l e c t i o n 

25 w i t h i n 48 hours, i f t h a t ' s the e l e c t i o n t h a t we're 
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1 w i l l i n q t o make. We're bearinq the brunt of the r i s k . 
j 

2 Q. I understand t h a t , but the p a r t i e s ' 

3 i p a r t i c i p a t i o n would change s i g n i f i c a n t l y i f the 1 

i : 

4 I p r o r a t i o n u n i t s were stand-up r a t h e r than lie-down; i s 

5 ; t h a t not c o r r e c t ? 

6 : A. Yes, I b e l i e v e they would. 

7 Q. And t h a t ' s probably one of the p r i n c i p a l 
; j 

8 areas of disagreement between the p a r t i e s at t h i s 

9 ; p o i n t , i s i t not? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. You s t a t e d t h a t t o deepen the proposed w e l l 

12 ; i n 22 through the Morrow i f the Atoka proved dry would 

13 only be $15,000 more. 

14 | My ques t i o n to you i s how d i d you determine 

15 : t h a t number? And i n t h a t c o n n e c t i o n , I'd l i k e you to 

16 i t e l l us what the d a i l y d r i l l i n g r a t e i s , and how many 

17 days does i t take t o d r i l l through the Morrow i n t h i s 

18 area . 

19 A. The numbers t h a t I have are provided by the 

20 d r i l l i n g engineer. So what I'm t e s t i f y i n g t o i s what j 

21 he has t o l d me. 

22 The two numbers, the AFE for the Atoka test \ 

23 ! i s $1,361,000, and the AFE f o r a Morrow t e s t i s 

24 j $1,376,000. And t h a t would be the d i f f e r e n c e i n j 

25 c o s t . 
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1 The number t h a t I'm using f o r t h a t Morrow 

2 t e s t i s the AFE f o r our w e l l t h a t we have proposed i n 

3 ;Section 26. 

4 But, e s s e n t i a l l y the d i f f e r e n c e i s , as 

5 i e x p l a i n e d t o me by our d r i l l i n g e ngineers, t h a t the 

6 j cost t o d r i l l the a d d i t i o n a l however many days, and I 

7 don't know how many days i t would take t o d r i l l t o the 

8 Morrow, w i l l be o f f s e t by not having t o spend the 

9 ! d o l l a r s t o buy the mud and a l l the a d d i t i v e s of the 

10 :mud i f you encountered a high-pressured Atoka zone. 

11 So, e s s e n t i a l l y , you're t a l k i n g about the 

12 \ same numbers. I f you encounter a high pressure Atoka 

13 I zone and stop t h e r e , then your cost i s $1,361 m i l l i o n , 

14 : and i f you do not encounter the high-pressure Atoka, 

15 then your cost i s $1,376 m i l l i o n . 

16 MR. LOPEZ: No f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s . 

17 i HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. K e l l a h i n ? 

18 MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

19 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

20 BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

21 Q. Miss Lane, l e t me make sure I'm c l e a r on 

22 what you're proposing. The e l e c t i o n p e r i o d by which 

23 any p a r t i e s w i l l have the o p p o r t u n i t y t o pay t h e i r 

24 share of the cost of the w e l l , which i n the absence of 

25 an agreement w i t h the Reynolds group would put them i n 
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1 t h a t category --

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. You're proposing a p r o v i s i o n i n the p o o l i n g 

4 ; order t h a t would r e q u i r e Oryx t o provide to those 

5 p a r t i e s a s u i t e of logs on the w e l l i n the n o r t h h a l f 

6 of 27, which i s the Antelope Ridge No. 1? 

7 A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

8 Q. And t h a t w i t h i n 48 hours of r e c e i v i n g t h a t 

9 i n f o r m a t i o n , they would provide you w i t h t h e i r 

10 commitment f o r the w e l l ? 

11 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

12 Q. And t h a t w i l l be the same basis by which 

13 Oryx makes a d e t e r m i n a t i o n about them going forward 

14 w i t h the w e l l ? 
i I 

15 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

16 | Q. And t h a t w i l l be done i n context of a 

17 p o o l i n g order and the e l e c t i o n periods provided f o r 

18 ! those companies? 

19 i A. That's c o r r e c t . 

20 Q. Does i t d i m i n i s h , i n your o p i n i o n as a 

21 g e o l o g i s t , the percentage of r i s k f a c t o r p e n a l t y to be 

22 ' a p p l i e d f o r the No. 2 Antelope Well i f you wa i t u n t i l 
i 

23 : the w e l l i n the n o r t h h a l f of 27 i s d r i l l e d ? 
24 A. No, s i r . And j u s t as the p o i n t was made 

1 
25 j e a r l i e r , as you move -- f o r i n s t a n c e , i n Section 35, 
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1 : you move less than 1,500 f e e t ; you went from 4 f e e t to 
i 

2 !17 f e e t ; so the i n t e r v a l can change d r a s t i c a l l y i n a 

3 I sho r t d i s t a n c e of time . So the r i s k i s s t i l l , even 

4 | a f t e r the w e l l i s d r i l l e d i n 27, the r i s k i n 22 i s 

5 s t i l l very h i g h . 

6 j MR. KELLAHIN: No f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s , Mr. 

7 'Examiner. 
8 ! HEARING EXAMINER: Thank you, Mr. 

9 | K e l l a h i n . 
I 

10 ! CROSS-EXAMINATION 

11 j BY HEARING EXAMINER: 

12 Q. Miss Lane, I want to take a look at t h i s 

13 | unorthodox l o c a t i o n a l i t t l e b i t c l o s e r . You're 

14 basing t h i s on geology. That's the only aspect at 

15 : t h i s t i m e ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

16 A. Of the unorthodox l o c a t i o n ? 

17 Q. Yes. 

18 A. I t ' s based on geology and also some 

19 economics t h a t were run. 

20 I Q. Oh, are those economics here? I'm s o r r y . 

21 A. No, s i r . My conclusions are based on 

22 ' geology 

23 Q. Just a second. What you're showing me 

24 today i s j u s t geology? 

25 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. So economics, you haven't provided me w i t h 

2 t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n ; so we can ignore t h a t ? 

3 A. Okay. 

4 Q. Based on geology alone, t h a t ' s what we have 

5 ; today, t h a t ' s what you're t e l l i n g me, but at the same 

6 time you're asking f o r a 200 percent r i s k p e n a l t y 

7 f a c t o r . I f a w e l l was d r i l l e d i n the south h a l f at a 

8 standard l o c a t i o n , how would t h a t a f f e c t Oryx? 

9 A. That would increase our r i s k , and we would 

10 have t o -- I hate to get back t o -- we would have to 

11 go back and run economics t o see i f we would d r i l l the 

12 w e l l . 

13 Q. Like you s a i d , you haven't presented 

14 economics; so we can ignore t h a t . I f you d i d n ' t f e e l 

15 i t was prudent to submit i t today, then we can j u s t 

16 ignore t h a t . 

17 You j u s t got through saying i t would 

18 i increase your r i s k . So what you're t e l l i n g me, i f we 

19 move a w e l l from a standard l o c a t i o n t o t h i s l o c a t i o n , 

20 we would decrease r i s k . By how much? 

21 A. You would go from approximately 17 f e e t of 

22 pay, o r , I'm s o r r y , something around 12 to 15 f e e t of 

23 pay to 22 f e e t of pay, and I haven't r e a l l y sat down 

24 and looked at e x a c t l y what the r i s k d i f f e r e n c e would 

25 i be. I b e l i e v e i t would be something i n the 
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1 neighborhood, j u s t o f f the top of my head, of probably 

2 20 t o 30 perce n t . 

3 HEARING EXAMINER: I have no other 

4 : questions of t h i s w i t n e s s . Are th e r e any other 

5 
: 

questions of Miss Lane? 
6 MR. KELLAHIN: Some f o l l o w - u p q u e s t i o n s , 

7 Mr. Examiner. 

8 FURTHER EXAMINATION 

9 BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

10 
! Q * 

Miss Lane, am I c o r r e c t i n understanding 

11 : your responses t o Mr. Stogner t h a t at the proposed 

12 unorthodox l o c a t i o n , t h a t i s the optimum l o c a t i o n , but 

13 at t h a t l o c a t i o n , i t s t i l l represents a 200 percent 

14 r i s k t h a t you have recommended i n the p o o l i n g order? 

15 A. Yes , s i r . 

16 Q • I f we move t o the c l o s e s t orthodox 

17 \ l o c a t ion , we are decreasing r e s e r v o i r volume? 

18 A. T h a t 1 s c o r r e c t . 

19 Q • And t h e r e f o r e i t would be i n c r e a s i n g the 

20 r i s k of the w e l l ? 

21 A. Yes , s i r . 

22 Q • And you pegged t h a t range at being 20 t o 30 

23 percent a d d i t i o n a l r i s k at the standard l o c a t i o n ? 

24 A. Yes . 

25 Q. In terms of the s t a t u t o r y maximum then, the 
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1 standard l o c a t i o n , i n your o p i n i o n , would exceed the 

2 maximum r i s k f a c t o r p e n a l t y i n a p o o l i n g case? 

3 A. Yes, s i r . 

4 MR. KELLAHIN: No f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s . 

5 MR. LOPEZ: I'd l i k e to f o l l o w up w i t h one 

6 ques t i o n as a r e s u l t of Mr. Stogner's q u e s t i o n s . 

7 FURTHER EXAMINATION 

8 BY MR. LOPEZ: 

9 Q. Miss Lane, i f you were t o d r i l l at a 

10 ; standard l o c a t i o n , would you r a t h e r be 1,980 from the 

11 swest l i n e and 660 from the south l i n e , or would you 

12 i r a t h e r be 660 from the west l i n e and 1,980 from the 

13 south l i n e ? 

14 A. I would r a t h e r be -- I wouldn't r a t h e r be 

15 at e i t h e r one of those or I wouldn't have proposed 

16 : t h i s l o c a t i o n . I f I had a choi c e , I would r a t h e r than 

17 1,980 from the west l i n e . 

18 Q. And 660 from the south r a t h e r than the 

19 reverse? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 HEARING EXAMINER: Are ther e any other 

22 questions of t h i s witness? I f n o t , she may be 

23 excused. 

24 MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes our d i r e c t 

25 i p r e s e n t a t i o n , Mr. Stogner. 
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1 : HEARING EXAMINER: Let's take a 10-minute 

2 recess . 
i 

3 ; HEARING EXAMINER: S h a l l we continue? Mr. 

4 |Lopez, I b e l i e v e i t ' s your t u r n . 

5 MR. LOPEZ: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

6 ; DAVID PACE, 

7 the witness h e r e i n , having been f i r s t d uly sworn upon 

8 h i s oa t h , was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

9 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

10 BY MR. LOPEZ: 

11 Q. Would you please s t a t e your name and where 

12 j you r e s i d e . 

13 ; A. David Pace, Midland, Texas. 

14 Q. What do you do, Mr. Pace? 

15 A. I am a g e o l o g i s t . 

16 Q. Who are you appearing on behalf of i n t h i s 

17 hearing? 

18 A. I'm appearing on behalf of Joe Jack 

19 Reynolds of the Reynolds group. 

20 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the area s u b j e c t t o 

21 Case No. 9782? 

22 A. Yes, I am. 

23 Q. How are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h i s area? 
24 A. The acreage t h a t -- predom i n a n t l y , the 

25 acreage t h a t Sun has an i n t e r e s t i n i n t h i s immediate 
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1 area was an acreage block i n which I , i n essence, put 

2 together i n 1981 and sol d subsequent i n t e r e s t i n t h a t 

3 I group of leases t o an MGF O i l Company, a N a t i o n a l O i l 
i 

4 , Company of Texas, Ackeman Petroleum, and the Joe J. 

5 Reynolds group. 

6 ; Q. Have you been working w i t h Mr. Reynolds 

7 since t h a t date t o explore and develop the acreage i n 

8 question? 
9 A. Yes, I have. 

10 Q. Have you been r e p r e s e n t i n g him i n a l l the 

11 n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h Oryx t o date? 

12 A. Yes. On a p a r t i a l basis w i t h J e f f 

13 Reynolds, each of us sharing some of the l o a d . 

14 Q. Have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before t h i s 

15 Commission and had your q u a l i f i c a t i o n s as a g e o l o g i s t 

16 : accepted as a matter of record? 

17 A. Yes, I have. 

18 MR. LOPEZ: I s the witness considered 

19 q u a l i f i e d ? 

20 HEARING EXAMINER: Are there any 

21 o b j e c t i o n s ? 

22 MR. KELLAHIN: No o b j e c t i o n , Mr. Examiner. 

23 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Pace i s so 

24 i q u a l i f i e d . 

25 Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) Mr. Pace, I'd l i k e you to 
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1 r e f e r to what's been marked Reynolds E x h i b i t No. 1 and 

2 ask you to i d e n t i f y and e x p l a i n i t . And i n t h a t 
i 

3 c o n n e c t i o n , I ' d l i k e you to discuss a l i t t l e more 

4 ; f u l l y the h i s t o r y of your a c q u i s i t i o n of the acreage 

5 i n q u e s t i o n . 

6 A. This i s a land map of Standard Midland Map 

7 Company -- a land map of the area which we have 

8 r e f e r r e d t o i n the past as the "bartender area." 

9 The acreage o u t l i n e d i n y e l l o w i s the 

10 acreage i n which the Joe J. Reynolds i n t e r e s t s t i l l 

11 has an i n t e r e s t i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area. We acquired 

12 : t h i s acreage i n 1981, ten-year leases. They were 

13 !drawn on a f e d e r a l l o t t e r y by two d i f f e r e n t 

14 i n d i v i d u a l s . 

15 The Federal Lease 43-9-64 -- i t v a r i e s on 

16 each map -- 43-5-64, i t appears, was the lease i n 

17 which a Tony Lane from Roswell, New Mexico, had drawn 

18 t h i s acreage. I t was o r i g i n a l l y 1,980 acres. 

19 The opposing acreage, or the Lease 43-3-65 

20 or 9, something t o t h a t e f f e c t , was 640 acres t h a t a 

21 J. Ackerman out of Casper, Wyoming, I b e l i e v e , had 

22 drawn i n the l o t t e r y . 

23 We n e g o t i a t e d a lease w i t h both these 

24 i n d i v i d u a l s i n 1981, w i t h MGF, who had taken 50 

25 percent of t h i s prospect from him, and were e l e c t e d 
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1 the o p e r a t o r . We entered i n t o an agreement w i t h these 

2 i n d i v i d u a l s t o take an o i l and gas lease from them. 

3 Subsequent to t h a t , we went out i n the east 

4 h a l f of 22 and purchased the east h a l f of 22 at a KGS 

5 s a l e . Of course, at the time i n 1981, acreage p r i c e s 

6 were s i g n i f i c a n t l y d i f f e r e n t . 

7 We ended up w i t h r i g h t at $3 m i l l i o n i n 

8 acreage costs i n t h i s block and worked out somewhere 

9 I around $1,500 an acre as our basis i n i t . 

10 W i t h i n t h r e e to fo u r months a f t e r we had 

11 the prospect g a t h e r , by t h a t had the leases t i e d up, 

12 we formed an AMI and a J o i n t Operating Aqreement w i t h 

13 MGF, naming MGF as the o p e r a t o r , p r e t t y much 

14 , encompassing the e n t i r e township i n terms of an AMI 

15 f o r subsequent acreage a c q u i s i t i o n and so f o r t h , 

16 f a i r l y standard d e a l . 

17 W i t h i n t h r e e to fo u r months a f t e r g e t t i n g 

18 t h a t done, MGF f i l e d Chapter 11 and went bankrupt. 

19 j W i t h i n a p e r i o d of two t o th r e e years a f t e r 

20 t h a t , Ackeman Petroleum d i d the same t h i n g , f i l e d 

21 Chapter 11, and, as a r e s u l t , i t t i e d t h i s acreage 

22 block up f o r many, many years. MGF was a t t e m p t i n g t o 

23 : s e l l i t due to the f a c t the gas bubble had b u r s t . Gas 

24 I p r i c e s -- when we f i r s t went i n t o t h i s , we used $3.50 

25 | f o r our economics, very c o n s e r v a t i v e l y . We had some 
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1 v e r b a l o f f e r s up to $9 an Mcf f o r the acreage. 

2 To make a long s t o r y s h o r t , we were very 

3 proud of t h i s acreage. We attempted t o get numerous 

4 \ d r i l l i n g d e a l s , but w i t h two of the p a r t n e r s i n 

5 bankruptcy, i t j u s t wasn't p o s s i b l e . 

6 i And i n about 87, I b e l i e v e , an agreement 

7 1 was f i n a l l y reached w i t h Apache Petroleum i n which we 

8 ; could f i n a l l y proceed t o d r i l l i n g a l o c a t i o n on t h i s 

9 b l o c k . And Apache chose to d r i l l the l o c a t i o n i n the 

10 east h a l f of 22, which was e x p i r i n g , I b e l i e v e , i n 87 

11 at the same tim e . 

12 Being a f e d e r a l lease, they were d r i l l i n g 

13 ; on t h a t l o c a t i o n over the e x p i r a t i o n of the primary 

14 term or d r i l l i n g d u r i n g or at the date of the 
I 

15 e x p i r a t i o n of the primary term. And we acquired a 

16 two-year extension of t h a t under the f e d e r a l s t a t u t e s 

17 and held t h a t acreage u n t i l , I b e l i e v e , sometime l a s t 

18 year or sometime e a r l i e r t h i s year. 

19 Anyway, t h a t acreage e x p i r e d , and we no 

20 longer had an i n t e r e s t i n i t . 

21 Q. And, o b v i o u s l y , then Oryx was able t o 

22 acquire the acreage a f t e r i t lapsed; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

23 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

24 Q. What dis c u s s i o n s have you had w i t h Oryx i n 

25 an attempt t o s e t t l e your d i f f e r e n c e w i t h respect t o 
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1 t h i s hearing? 

2 A. We have had numerous d i s c u s s i o n s . My 

3 | d i s c u s s i o n s have centered around d i s c u s s i o n w i t h Mrs. 

4 Lane on how we would handle the Section 22 l o c a t i o n . 

5 We have been d i s c u s s i n g t h i s program, as she 

6 mentioned, f o r a number of months. We f e l t l i k e 

7 ; Section 27 was a f a i r l y rank w e l l . I t was a w i l d c a t , 

8 ; f a i r l y r i s k y . With the c o n t r o l we had at the t i m e , we 

9 f e l t l i k e the Atoka b u i l d u p -- what I ' l l r e f e r t o as 

10 the Atoka b u i l d u p -- was going t o the northwest, and 

11 t h a t l o c a t i o n was a stepout i n terms of t h a t Atoka 

12 b u i l d u p . 

13 That l o c a t i o n was d r i l l e d . We had, as she 

14 shows, 50-plus f e e t of p o r o s i t y i n t h a t l o c a t i o n , and 

15 f e l t l i k e , as we had discussed, t h a t we got one 

16 l o c a t i o n at a ti m e , moving n o r t h , to see j u s t how f a r 

17 t h i s Atoka b u i l d u p goes. We know i t doesn't go to the 

18 ; n o r t h e a s t . We have s u f f i c i e n t c o n t r o l to the 

19 n o r t h e a s t , but we have no c o n t r o l i n the immediate 

20 area u n t i l you get f i v e t o s i x miles f u r t h e r on t o the 

21 n o r t h . 

22 So the d i s c u s s i o n centered around the f a c t 

23 we would d r i l l , take i t one l o c a t i o n at a t i m e , 

24 , d r i l l i n g along the b u i l d u p , e v a l u a t i n g each l o c a t i o n 

25 as to i t s e f f e c t , on t o the next l o c a t i o n . 
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1 We were somewhat s u r p r i s e d . Our d i s c u s s i o n 
i 

2 centered around the f a c t t h a t i f the l o c a t i o n i n the 

3 : n o r t h h a l f of 27 was good, what would be the 

4 ! l i k e l i h o o d of ther e being a l o c a t i o n i n 22. 

5 Now, s p e c i f i c a l l y , as we both f e l t l i k e i t 
6 ;would be i n t h a t southwest corner, b u t , then again, 

7 :depending on where i t could be, the center of the i 
i i 

8 ;b u i l d u p may i n d i c a t e we needed t o d r i l l i n t o the east j 

9 ; h a l f of 21 . ! 
i 

10 So we were somewhat shocked when we ! 

11 received AFE's f o r not only a l o c a t i o n i n the n o r t h 

12 h a l f of 27 but also i n what was the south h a l f of 22. I 

13 ! At the time we discussed, i t never occurred 

14 t o us t h a t t h e r e would be any t h i n g but a stand-up 

15 p r o r a t i o n u n i t i n 22. One, t h a t i s the d i r e c t i o n the 

16 t r e n d i s going i s i n a northwest f a s h i o n . And, two, 

17 iwe f e l t l i k e t h a t i t was f a i r l y cut and d r i e d t h a t i t 

18 jwould be a west h a l f l o c a t i o n because t h a t was, as we 

19 | t hought, everyone's acreage p o s i t i o n i n t h e r e at the 

20 ! time. 

21 I t wasn't u n t i l f a i r l y l a t e , and I can't 

22 give you the exact date, probably l a t e i n September 

23 when we found out t h a t Oryx had acquired the east h a l f 
24 of 22 . 

25 Q. I n order to s e t t l e your d i f f e r e n c e w i t h 
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1 respect to a liedown versus a standup p r o r a t i o n u n i t 

2 i i n Section 22, d i d Reynolds group o f f e r to buy t h e i r 

3 p r o p o r t i o n a t e share of the east h a l f acreage? 

4 A. Yes. I b e l i e v e i t was Wednesday of l a s t 

5 week, Shelley and I were d i s c u s s i n g the f a c t t h a t we 

6 had a d i f f e r e n c e on t h i s l o c a t i o n , a d i f f e r e n c e of 

7 j o p i n i o n t h a t would f a c i l i t a t e us opposing them at the 

8 ; hearings up here unless we could come to some kind of 

9 agreement. 

10 And i n an e f f o r t to reach an agreement, I 

11 j made the suggestion t o her t h a t the Reynolds group 

12 would be w i l l i n g t o go ahead and pay f o r t h e i r 12-1/2 

13 percent of t h a t acreage a c q u i s i t i o n t h a t they had 

14 j made. 

15 1 We would pay, as you would under standard 

16 : area of mutual i n t e r e s t , our p r o p o r t i o n a t e share of 

17 t h a t acreage i n cost basis and p a r t i c i p a t e i n any 

18 I l o c a t i o n d r i l l e d t h e r e based on t h a t i n t e r e s t , thereby 

19 ! not d i l u t i n g our i n t e r e s t by h a l f w i t h t h a t a d d i t i o n a l 

20 ac reage . 

21 Q. Do you s t i l l t h i n k t h a t the most l o g i c a l 

22 p r o r a t i o n u n i t from a g e o l o g i c a l s t a n d p o i n t i s the 

23 standup west h a l f ? 

24 A. Yes, I do. 

25 Q. Do you t h i n k the p r i n c i p a l reason f o r 
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1 Oryx's seeking a liedown south h a l f u n i t i s t o d i l u t e 

2 ' the other working i n t e r e s t --

3 j MR. KELLAHIN: O b j e c t i o n . I t c a l l s f o r 

4 s p e c u l a t i o n on the p a r t of the w i t n e s s . He has no 

5 idea what i s i n Oryx's mind. 

6 MR. LOPEZ: Mr. Examiner, i t seems t o me 

7 t h a t the g e o l o g i s t can discuss at l e n g t h regarding 

8 n e g o t i a t i o n s , and he can have an o p i n i o n as t o why 

9 Oryx i s seeking t h i s lay-down r a t h e r than a stand-up. 

10 MR. KELLAHIN: That wasn't the question put 

11 to the w i t n e s s , Mr. Examiner. He asked him to 

12 I speculate on whether Oryx's motives i n proposing the 

13 laydown was to d i l u t e the Reynolds' i n t e r e s t . And 

14 ther e has been no testimony before you today t h a t t h a t 

15 was at a l l an issue i n my c l i e n t ' s minds. And to l e t 

16 i t h i s witness speculate on t h a t s u b j e c t I t h i n k i s 

17 • i n a p p r o p r i a t e . 

18 MR. LOPEZ: I can rephrase the q u e s t i o n , 

19 Mr. Examiner. 

20 ; HEARING EXAMINER: Would t h a t be a l l r i g h t , 

21 Mr. K e l l a h i n ? 

22 MR. KELLAHIN: He can t r y again, Mr. 

23 Examine r . 

24 HEARING EXAMINER: A l l r i g h t . Try again. 

25 Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) Mr. Pace, why do you 
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1 b e l i e v e t h a t Oryx i s i n s i s t i n g on a lie-down r a t h e r 

2 than a stand-up u n i t ? 

3 MR. KELLAHIN: O b j e c t i o n . Same q u e s t i o n . 

4 ; He's asking the the witness to speculate on Oryx's 

5 mot i v e s . 

6 HEARING EXAMINER: I'm going o v e r r u l e your 

7 ' o b j e c t i o n and l e t the witness answer t h i s q u e s t i o n . 

8 THE WITNESS: G e o l o g i c a l l y , I have a hard 

9 [ t i m e j u s t i f y i n g i n c l u d i n g t h a t acreage i n the east 

10 h a l f of 22 i n t o the p r o r a t i o n u n i t . 

11 So i t has been my f e e l i n g s since I have 

12 found out t h a t they have gone towards the south h a l f 

13 p r o r a t i o n u n i t t h a t t h a t was probably the motive i n 

14 t h e i r mind t o in c l u d e t h a t acreage was t h a t they would 

15 probably l i k e t o have a l a r g e r i n t e r e s t i n t h a t 

16 l o c a t i o n . 

17 That could be accomplished by communitizing 

18 t h a t southeast q u a r t e r i n w i t h the southwest q u a r t e r . 

19 Q. (BY MR. LOPEZ) Would you be w i l l i n g t o 

20 p a r t i c i p a t e i n a stand-up u n i t of the west h a l f at a 

21 standard l o c a t i o n ? 

22 | A. Yes, we would. I would l i k e t o preface 

23 ' t h a t w i t h the f a c t t h a t we don't f e e l comfortable at 

24 ; a l l w i t h t h a t l o c a t i o n i n 22 u n t i l we see a l o c a t i o n 

25 i n 27. We consider i t j u s t maybe even r i s k i e r than 
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I 

1 Oryx does t h a t we d r i l l i n 22 w i t h o u t t h a t g e o l o g i c a l 

2 i n f o r m a t i o n i n 27. 

3 Q. With t h a t as a g i v e n , and I should have 

4 ; prefaced my remarks saying t h a t depending on the ! 
i i 

5 r e s u l t s of a w e l l i n the n o r t h h a l f of 27. j 
1 i 

6 I' d now l i k e you to r e f e r to what's marked | 

7 1 as E x h i b i t 2-A and 2-B and ask you to i d e n t i f y and ' 

8 e x p l a i n them and what they are i n t r o d u c e d t o show. 

9 A. 2-A and 2-B are copies of w e l l l o g s , 2-A 

10 being -- we d i d n ' t mark these i n d i v i d u a l l y , but I j 

11 b e l i e v e 2-A i s the Apache w e l l l o c a t e d i n the 

12 southeast q u a r t e r of 22, and 2-B being the BTA w e l l i n 

13 ! the n o r t h h a l f of 23. 

14 On those w e l l l o g s , I have marked some tops 

15 I which we c a l l i n the area and we f e e l l i k e have some 

16 s i g n i f i c a n c e to t h i s h e a r i n g , those tops being the 

17 tops t h a t I have picked are the top of the Strawn, 

18 what I c a l l the top of the Atoka. I t ' s marked "BU." 

19 That's an a b b r e v i a t i o n f o r Atoka b u i l d u p . Then I mark 

20 a base of Atoka b u i l d u p , and what I c a l l the top of 

21 the Atoka l i m e . And then I mark a top of Atoka C 

22 zone, a top of Morrow, and a top of middle Morrow. 

23 Those tops w i l l be used on both E x h i b i t s 
24 2-A, 2-B, and on 3-A, 3-B. 

25 Q. Do you want t o r e f e r to 3-A and 3-B now and 
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1 ; i d e n t i f y them? 

2 A. Yes. 3-A -- and, again, I'm not sure which 

3 one i s which. I b e l i e v e 3-A I s the Oryx Sun Federal 

4 ; Com No. 1, and 3-B i s the Oryx Ojo Chiso Federal No. 

5 1, the Sun Federal being the Atoka l o c a t i o n i n the 

6 south h a l f of 27, and the Ojo Chiso Federal being i n 

7 the n o r t h h a l f of 26 Morrow l o c a t i o n . 

8 Q. Again, have you used the same markers on 

9 E x h i b i t s 3-A and 3-B? 

10 A. Yes. A l l four logs are marked the same way 

11 i w i t h the exception of the Sun Federal w e l l , due to the 

12 f a c t t h a t we were not able to take the w e l l i n t o the 

13 Morrow, i t does not have the top of Morrow or top of 

14 middle Morrow marked. That Section was not pen e t r a t e d 

15 at t h a t l o c a t i o n . 

16 Q. What i s the purpose of i n t r o d u c i n g these 

17 e x h i b i t s ? What i s i t t h a t you i n t e n d to show? 

18 A. I t i s the i n t e n t through our g e o l o g i c a l 

19 i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , t h a t we do not f e e l t h e r e i s any Atoka 

20 pay or any Atoka r e s e r v o i r i n the southeast q u a r t e r of 

21 22. We f e e l l i k e t h a t the Apache w e l l d i d a f a i r l y 

22 good job of condemning what has been c a l l e d , what 

23 ' we're r e f e r r i n g i n here g e n e r a l l y as the Atoka pay. 

24 I t i s the same zone i n which I r e f e r to on my logs as 

25 the Atoka b u i l d u p . 
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1 And we f e e l l i k e t h a t t h e r e was such a 

2 \ small amount of Atoka b u i l d u p i n the Apache w e l l t h a t 

3 j i n d i c a t e s t h a t i t was probably not w i t h i n probably a 

4 ! h a l f a mil e of Atoka p o r o s i t y or Atoka b u i l d u p . 

5 Q. I f you compare the E x h i b i t s 3-A and 3-B, 

6 does t h i s c o n f i r m t h a t Atoka b u i l d u p take s i g n i f i c a n t 

7 d i s t a n c e i n which t o b u i l d u p , i f t h a t ' s the c o r r e c t 

8 way to describe i t , where i t ' s present and not 

9 pr e s e n t , I t h i n k you described the h a l f mile? 

10 A. Yes. From l o c a t i o n s t o the south, which 

11 t h i s p a r t i c u l a r p l a y or p a r t i c u l a r Atoka h o r i z o n or 

12 ;Atoka pay zone i s a tre n d t h a t extends on to the south 

13 ' f o r another at l e a s t 7 t o 8 miles and i s p r o d u c t i v e 

14 f o r at l e a s t another 7 or 8 miles t o the south. I t ' s 

15 got numerous completions, numerous p e n e t r a t i o n s , and 

16 numerous l o c a t i o n s o f f of the b u i l d u p i t s e l f . 

17 Based on t h a t , the Apache w e l l looked very 

18 s i m i l a r to some w e l l s t o the south t h a t were at l e a s t 

19 a h a l f a m i l e o f f of the Atoka b u i l d u p . 

20 I t h i n k I can giv e somewhat of an 

21 i n d i c a t i o n of t h a t w i t h these e x h i b i t s . 

22 Q. Would you t r y ? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 MR. LOPEZ: Mr. Examiner, can he come over 

25 and j u s t e x p l a i n ? I'm s o r r y t h a t our e x h i b i t s aren't 
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1 a l i t t l e more d e c o r a t i v e . 

2 HEARING EXAMINER: What are you going t o be 

3 t r y i n g t o show me t h a t you can't mark t h a t down t h e r e , 

4 j Mr. Pace? 

5 THE WITNESS: The comparison of what the 

6 Atoka b u i l d u p does, how i t t h i c k e n s i n a r e l a t i v e l y 

7 shor t p e r i o d of time . With these l o g s , I t h i n k we can 

8 give you an idea of what kind of t r a p we're d e a l i n g 

9 w i t h i n the Atoka i t s e l f . 

10 j HEARING EXAMINER: This i s p a r t , pursuant 

11 i to our r u l e s and r e g u l a t i o n s -- t h i s i s w i t h i n the 

12 undesignated Antelope Ridge Atoka Gas Pool. So, 

13 t h e r e f o r e , t h i s i s p r e t t y much a l l on the re c o r d . 

14 You have t a l k e d t o our d i s t r i c t o f f i c e i n 

15 Hobbs, I assume, on the Atoka geology? 

16 i THE WITNESS: No, s i r . 

17 HEARING EXAMINER: How does t h i s geology 

18 ' d i f f e r from what we have on our record i n the Antelope 

19 Atoka Gas Pool? 

20 THE WITNESS: I'm not e x a c t l y sure. In 

21 ;many instances i n the pa s t , my g e o l o g i c a l 

22 i n t e r p r e t a t i o n has d i f f e r e d from the State's i n 

23 s e v e r a l cases. So t h a t ' s the reason t h a t I'm showing 

24 my b a s i s . I have not seen how they show the geology. 

25 HEARING EXAMINER: I ' l l keep t h a t i n mind. 
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I 

1 THE WITNESS: E x h i b i t 2-A are the two loqs 
j 

2 : showing the BTA w e l l i n the n o r t h h a l f of 23, and the 

3 ; south h a l f of 22, the Apache w e l l . This i s the BTA 

4 ; w e l l . 

5 : HEARING EXAMINER: Speak up, Mr. Pace. 

6 S This i s on the r e c o r d . 

7 THE WITNESS: What I have are showing a 

8 c r o s s - s e c t i o n l a i d down side by side of the --

9 HEARING EXAMINER: Are you going t o show me 

10 i a cr o s s - s e c t i o n ? 

11 ! THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r , i n essence, I am. 

12 ; HEARING EXAMINER: Why don't you prepare 

13 t h a t ? Standing up here and g i v i n g g e o l o g i c a l 

14 testimony l i k e t h i s , I do not f i n d t h a t adequate at 

15 a l l . Mr. P a d i l l a — 

16 MR. LOPEZ: Mr. Lopez. 

17 HEARING EXAMINER: I'm s o r r y , Mr. Lopez. I 

18 would suggest e i t h e r we fo r m u l a t e a c r o s s - s e c t i o n 

19 which we can a l l read or drop the g e o l o g i c a l evidence 

20 of t h i s witness at t h i s t i m e . 

21 MR. LOPEZ: Can I ask him a que s t i o n as t o 
22 what he concludes from a review of the logs? 

23 HEARING EXAMINER: I t h i n k we can do t h a t . 

24 Obviously, the g e o l o g i c a l testimony t h a t your side i s 

25 p r e p a r i n g i s not adequate t o t h a t , nor i s i t 
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1 j adequately prepared. 

2 MR. LOPEZ: And i n response, Mr. Examiner, 

3 ; t h a t ' s p r e c i s e l y why I asked f o r a continuance because 

4 we thought we were going t o be able to sub i n t h a t 

5 area but not have to be --

6 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Lopez, you d i d not 

7 ask f o r a continuance based on t h a t you d i d not have 

8 ' enough ti m e . 

9 ; MR. LOPEZ: Yes, I d i d , Mr. Examiner. That 

10 ; was my f i r s t p o i n t . I had three p o i n t s . The f i r s t 

11 was t h a t we had f a i l u r e t o adequately prepare f o r t h i s 

12 hearing because what we thought would be succ e s s f u l 

13 n e g o t i a t i o n s broke down. And my other two reasons --

14 ; HEARING EXAMINER: That's a d i f f e r e n c e , 

15 t h a t they broke down. 

16 ; MR. LOPEZ: No. That we d i d n ' t have time 

17 t o prepare because we d i d n ' t t h i n k we would have t o be 

18 p r o t e s t i n g . I thought I made t h a t c l e a r . 

19 HEARING EXAMINER: No, and you're s t i l l not 

20 making i t c l e a r . 

21 MR. LOPEZ: My p o i n t i s t h a t the Reynolds 

22 ; group would have had time t o prepare the proper 

23 ! e x h i b i t s f o r t h i s hearing had we a n t i c i p a t e d t h a t we 

24 would be o b j e c t i n g t o the a p p l i c a t i o n of Oryx, which 

25 ; we d i d n ' t and were unable t o determine u n t i l l a t e i n 
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1 the game. 

2 I was not contacted by Reynolds u n t i l l a s t 

3 j n i g h t , and we have t r i e d to put t o g e t h e r , as best 

4 ; case as we co u l d , based on the f a c t t h a t we weren't 

5 granted a continuance. 

6 We would be happy t o have the case 

7 \ continued to the next examiner hearing and prepare and 

8 ! i n t r o d u c e at t h a t time proper cross-sect i o n s . 

9 MR. STOVALL: I f I may, Mr. Examiner, may I 

10 ' ask Mr. Lopez a question? 

11 What are you hoping t o show w i t h the 

12 g e o l o g i c a l evidence? What i s the purpose of p u t t i n g 

13 \ t h i s on? 

14 MR. LOPEZ: The g e o l o g i c a l evidence i s 

15 going t o show t h a t the southeast q u a r t e r a f f e c t i n g 22 

16 i s not p r o d u c t i v e or cannot be considered p r o d u c t i v e 

17 i n the Atoka and, t h e r e f o r e , should not be a p a r t of a 

18 • p r o r a t i o n u n i t ; t h a t i t should be a stand-up r a t h e r 

19 than a lie-down p r o r a t i o n u n i t . 

20 And i f you compare Morrow producers 

21 o f f s e t t i n g Atoka producers i n the v i c i n i t y of the area 

22 ' i n q u e s t i o n , based on these l o g s , you w i l l see t h a t 

23 you cannot a n t i c i p a t e any p r o d u c t i o n i n the Atoka 

24 w i t h i n the southeast q u a r t e r of the dry hole t h a t was 

25 already d r i l l e d i n the Atoka i n Section 22. 
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1 ; And the comparisons of these logs would 

2 ; show t h a t you have t o go some d i s t a n c e , a h a l f a m i l e , 

3 before a s u f f i c i e n t b u i l d u p occurs i n order to j u s t i f y 

4 an Atoka t a r g e t . 

5 MR. STOVALL: Let's take a couple of 

6 'minutes, Mr. Examiner. 

7 (Thereupon, a recess was taken.) 

8 HEARING EXAMINER: This hearing w i l l come 

9 ; to order. Mr. Lopez, I s t i l l stand on my d e c i s i o n on 

10 the motion e a r l i e r today. 

11 Mr. Pace, I w i l l l e t you t e s t i f y as f a r as 

12 g e o l o g i c conclusions based on your i n d i v i d u a l logs 

13 today, but as f a r as s i t t i n g here, t r y i n g t o b u i l d a 

14 c r o s s - s e c t i o n , an i n v i s i b l e c r o s s - s e c t i o n , I w i l l not 

15 al l o w t h a t i n . 

16 Mr. Lopez? 

17 MR. LOPEZ: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

18 Q. Mr. Pace, would you e x p l a i n what your 

19 conclusions are w i t h respect to the i n t r o d u c t i o n of 

20 these logs and what they would show i f you were able 

21 to pre s e n t , had you had adequate time to prepare, the 

22 ; type of c r o s s - s e c t i o n t h a t we would have wished? 

23 A. I w i l l attempt to do so. The E x h i b i t s 2-A 

24 ; and 2-B would be to show t h a t the c o r r e l a t i v e p o i n t s 

25 j at the time t h a t the Atoka was deposited -- of course, 
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1 g e o l o g i c a l l y , we always s t a r t our c o r r e l a t i o n s and 

'•- \ 
2 c o r r e l a t e from the bottom of the l o g working up; i . e . , j 

I 

3 the o l d e s t g e o l o g i c f o r m a t i o n s were d e p o s i t e d , of 

4 course, the e a r l i e s t . And so you attempt to f i n d your 

5 markers w i t h i n each of those f o r m a t i o n s from the 

6 bottom, moving up. ! 

7 I would attempt t o show t h a t what I 
i 
i 

8 ; i n d i c a t e what I show i n the e x h i b i t s as the base of j 
9 the Atoka b u i l d u p i s the same marker on a l l four of 

10 those l o g s . And, i n essence, what i t would show would 

11 be, i n both the BTA w e l l and the Apache w e l l , t h a t 

12 |both of those w e l l s show less than 40 f e e t of Atoka 

13 bu i l d u p . 

14 The Apache w e l l shows 21 f e e t of b u i l d u p , 

15 which i s a c t u a l l y , i n my i n t e r p r e t a t i o n a l s o , c l o s e r 

16 t o the Atoka b u i l d u p than even the BTA w e l l i n the 

17 n o r t h h a l f of Section 23. And i t would show 30 f e e t 

18 of Atoka b u i l d u p . 

19 Using t h a t same parameter, using those same 

20 c o r r e l a t i v e p o i n t s , I would show t h a t the Oryx w e l l i n 

21 the n o r t h h a l f of 26 had something on the order of 70 

22 f e e t of Atoka b u i l d u p , whereas the south h a l f l o c a t i o n 

23 and which we f e e l i s p r o d u c t i v e has over 200 f e e t of 
i 

24 Atoka b u i l d u p . 
25 I t appears t o me t h a t the Apache w e l l i s at 
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1 l e a s t a minimum of a h a l f m i l e from the b u i l d u p , 

2 p o s s i b l y more. The c o r r e l a t i o n between the two Oryx 

3 w e l l s , which are over a m i l e a p a r t , shows 70 to 80 

4 f e e t of Atoka b u i l d u p i s s t i l l not s u f f i c i e n t to get 

5 p o r o s i t y development w i t h i n Atoka. I t takes probably 

6 somewhere on the order o f , i n my o p i n i o n , 180 — 170 

7 to 180 of gross Atoka b u i l d u p to get i n the g e o l o g i c 

8 regime i n which you develop p o r o s i t y . That was what I 

9 ; would attempt to show w i t h the c r o s s - s e c t i o n s . 

10 Even w i t h i n the producing t r e n d i t s e l f , f o r 

11 \ i n s t a n c e , a l o c a t i o n i n the south h a l f of Section 35, 

12 ; the BTA w e l l , t h a t w e l l , as Shell e y i n d i c a t e s , had 35 

13 f e e t of p o r o s i t y i n i t . That w e l l p o t e n t i a l i s 

14 \ somewhere on the order of 6 to 7 m i l l i o n cubic f e e t of 

15 ! gas a day and 500 to 600 b a r r e l s of condensate. I t ' s 

16 ;been a p r e t t y tremendous producer. 

17 Our l o c a t i o n i n the south h a l f of 27 

18 i n d i c a t e s 50 f e e t or gre a t e r of -- net p o r o s i t y 

19 ; g r e a t e r than 4 percent. We have to date g o t t e n 2 

20 m i l l i o n a day and somewhere around 200 b a r r e l s of 

21 condensate. 

22 I t h i n k t h a t i n d i c a t e s t h a t even w i t h i n the 

23 producing t r e n d i t s e l f t h a t p o r o s i t i e s not only range 

24 ; q u i t e a b i t , but the w e l l ' s producing c a p a c i t y can 

25 : vary s i g n i f i c a n t l y , making i t a r i s k y p l a y i n i t s e l f . 
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1 We agree w i t h Oryx on t h a t . But we f e e l l i k e we need 

2 to take one l o c a t i o n at a t i m e , move t o the n o r t h . j 

3 And, p a r t i c u l a r l y , as t o 22, we f e e l l i k e , 

4 based on what we know at t h i s t i m e , we could d r i l l a i 
i 

: i 

5 west h a l f l o c a t i o n at a standard l o c a t i o n i n the west j 
6 h a l f and not have any e f f e c t on the way we i n t e r p r e t j 

j i 
; i 

7 the Atoka b u i l d u p going t o the n o r t h . ; 
8 Q. Do you t h i n k the nor t h e a s t q u a r t e r of 

9 Section 22 i s or would be p r o d u c t i v e i n the Atoka? ! 
', i 

10 A. Not the northe a s t q u a r t e r of 22. I do f e e l ! 

11 l i k e w i t h what we know at t h i s p o i n t , the northwest ! 

12 | qu a r t e r of 22 would be j u s t as p o t e n t i a l l y p r o d u c t i v e j 

13 as the southwest q u a r t e r of 22. 

14 Q. In your o p i n i o n , would the d e n i a l of Oryx's 

15 a p p l i c a t i o n i n t h i s case be i n the i n t e r e s t and 

16 p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s and the p r e v e n t i o n of 

17 ;waste? 

18 A. We f e e l l i k e at t h i s t i m e , yes, i t would. 

19 Q. Were E x h i b i t s 1 through 3 prepared by you 

20 or under your s u p e r v i s i o n ? 

21 A. Y e s , i t was. 

22 MR. LOPEZ: I ' d l i k e to i n t r o d u c e E x h i b i t s 

23 1 through 3. 
24 HEARING EXAMINER: Are th e r e any 

25 obj ections? 
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1 MR. KELLAHIN: No o b j e c t i o n s . 

2 HEARING EXAMINER: E x h i b i t s 1 through 3 

3 w i l l be admitted i n t o evidence. 

4 MR. LOPEZ: That concludes our d i r e c t . 

5 HEARING EXAMINER: Thank you, Mr. Lopez. 

6 Mr. K e l l a h i n , your w i t n e s s . 

7 MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

8 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

9 : BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

10 Q. Mr. Pace, when we look at Section 22, am I 

11 ' c o r r e c t i n understanding t h a t i n the no r t h e a s t q u a r t e r 

12 of t h a t S e c t i o n , i t i s your g e o l o g i c c o n c l u s i o n t h a t 

13 t h e r e i s no sands t h a t would c o n t r i b u t e i n the Atoka 

14 f o r m a t i o n out of the nor t h e a s t q u a r t e r ? 

15 A. The nort h e a s t q u a r t e r Atoka sands? 

16 Q. Yes. 

17 A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

18 Q. Did Miss Lane t e s t i f y t r u t h f u l l y when she 

19 ' t e s t i f i e d awhile ago under oath t h a t i n conversations 

20 w i t h you about the geology t h a t you agreed w i t h her 

21 t h a t the northwest q u a r t e r of Section 22 could not be 

22 mapped at t h i s p o i n t to i n c l u d e any Atoka sand 

23 r e s e r v o i r ? 

24 A. Yes. I n t h a t same d i s c u s s i o n , we not only 

25 i n c l u d e d the northwest q u a r t e r , but we in c l u d e d the 
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1 southwest q u a r t e r . Our di s c u s s i o n s were b a s i c a l l y 

2 i t ' s too e a r l y t o determine a n y t h i n g i n Section 22. 

3 Q. My question t o you, s i r , i s t h a t , i n the 

4 : northwest q u a r t e r of t h a t Section 22, you have agreed 

5 ; w i t h her i n telephone c a l l s t h a t i n your o p i n i o n you 
i 

6 ! could not map the Atoka f o r m a t i o n i n t h a t 160 acres? 

7 ! MR. LOPEZ: Mr. Examiner, I t h i n k he 

8 answered the q u e s t i o n , and I t h i n k i n the same 

9 question he sai d i t also i n c l u d e d the southwest 

10 q u a r t e r . 

11 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. K e l l a h i n , was t h a t 

12 your question? Did he answer your q u e s t i o n the f i r s t 

13 time? 

14 MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r , I d i d n ' t t h i n k so. 

15 HEARING EXAMINER: Just repeat the 

16 q u e s t i o n . 

17 Q. (BY MR. KELLAHIN) Let me repeat the 

18 ;question f o r you. I don't want to confuse you or me 

19 on what was s a i d . 

20 In l o o k i n g at the geology i n the southwest 

21 q u a r t e r of the Section 22, both you and Mrs. Lane have 

22 mapped the Atoka r e s e r v o i r i n the southwest q u a r t e r , 

23 have you not? 
24 A. Yes, we have. 

25 Q. When we look at the northwest q u a r t e r of 
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1 Section 22, she has t e s t i f i e d under oath t h a t you have 

2 : agreed w i t h her t h a t you could not map any Atoka 

3 r e s e r v o i r i n the northwest q u a r t e r of Section 22. I s 

4 t h a t a c o r r e c t statement? 

5 A. Yes, s i r . I might add i n t h a t same 

6 co n v e r s a t i o n w i t h Mrs. Lane --

7 Q. Excuse me, Mr. Pace. I t ' s not responsive 

8 t o my q u e s t i o n . 

9 MR. LOPEZ: I t h i n k he's e n t i t l e d t o 

10 e x p l a i n h i s answer, Mr. Examiner. 

11 MR. KELLAHIN: He's not given me a d i r e c t 

12 answer to my q u e s t i o n . 

13 MR. LOPEZ: He said yes, and i n t h a t same 

14 ; c o n v e r s a t i o n --

15 MR. KELLAHIN: I d i d n ' t ask him what the 

16 i r e s t of the co n v e r s a t i o n was. That i s Mr. Lopez's job 
f 

17 and not mine. I want the witness t o answer my d i r e c t 

18 question w i t h a f a i r answer. 

19 1 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Pace, you d i d answer 

20 the que s t i o n "yes"; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

21 THE WITNESS: That's c o r r e c t . 

22 HEARING EXAMINER: Please c o n t i n u e , Mr. 

23 K e l l a h i n . 

24 Q. (BY MR. KELLAHIN) When we look i n Section 

25 , 22 now, Mr. Pace, help me understand what Mr. 
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1 Reynolds 1 working i n t e r e s t i s i f the spacing u n i t i s a 

2 1 south h a l f o r i e n t a t i o n ? What percentage i s t h a t ? 

3 A . A south h a l f ? May I borrow your map? 

4 Q. Yes , s i r . 

5 A . I f t here i s a south h a l f p r o r a t i o n u n i t , 

6 the Reynolds' i n t e r e s t would be a 6.25 percent working 

7 1 i n t e r e s t . 

8 Q • In the n o r t h h a l f of Section 22, what would 

9 Mr. Reynolds' i n t e r e s t be? 

10 A. I f we had a n o r t h h a l f p r o r a t i o n u n i t ? 

11 Q. Yes, s i r . 

12 A. I t would be a 6.25 percent. 

13 ; Q . I f we have a west h a l f p r o r a t i o n u n i t , what 

14 i s Mr. Reynolds' working i n t e r e s t ? 

15 A. A 12-1/2 percent. 

16 i Q - And f o r the east h a l f of Section 22, what 

17 would h i s 
i 

i n t e r e s t be? 

18 A . Zero. 

19 Q. The logs t h a t you have taken copies and 

20 marked some of your g e o l o g i c conclusions on are, i n 

21 f a c t , logs t h a t you received from Mrs. Lane; i s t h a t 

22 not true? 

23 A. Yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t , I received the BTA 

24 logs f rom Mrs. Lane. 

25 Q. Am I also c o r r e c t i n understanding t h a t the 
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1 : o b j e c t i o n t h a t you're posing i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case 

2 i s as t o the o r i e n t a t i o n of the spacing u n i t ? J 

3 A. Yes, p r i m a r i l y , yes, i t i s . 

4 Q • As t o the proposed unorthodox l o c a t i o n of 

5 the w e l l , you are not recommending, are you, s i r , as a 

6 'p a r t y r e p r e s e n t i n g someone t h a t has an i n t e r e s t i n 

7 ! Section 21, which i s the area to be encroached upon, 

8 t h a t t h i s w e l l be p e n a l i z e d , are you? i 

9 A. I 
I'm s o r r y . I'm not f o l l o w i n g your 

10 q u e s t i o n . 

11 Q. Mr. Reynolds has an i n t e r e s t , does he n o t , 

12 I i n Section 21 ? 

13 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

14 Q • And the w e l l i s unorthodox because i t moves 

15 to the western boundary, the spacing u n i t ? 

16 A. That ' s co r r e c t . 

17 Q. You don't have any o b j e c t i o n t o t h a t w e l l 

18 l o c a t i o n , do you, i n terms of assessing a p e n a l t y j 

19 against the w e l l ? 

20 
i 

1 A • No . 

21 Q • Do you have any o b j e c t i o n t o Oryx being the 

22 ope r a t o r of the w e l l ? 

23 A. No, we do not. 

24 MR. KELLAHIN: No f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s . 

25 1 
HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. Lopez? Any 
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1 r e d i r e c t ? 

2 MR. LOPEZ: No. 

3 : HEARING EXAMINER: I have no f u r t h e r 

4 questions of Mr. Pace. He may be excused. 

5 Mr. Lopez, do you have a n y t h i n g f u r t h e r ? 

6 ; MR. LOPEZ: No, Mr. Examiner, we do not. 

7 1 HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. K e l l a h i n , do you 

8 have an y t h i n g f u r t h e r i n t h i s case? 

9 MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r . 

10 HEARING EXAMINER: Are you prepared f o r 

11 c l o s i n g statements, or do you wish to pass up on 

12 those? 

13 MR. LOPEZ: I t h i n k i t can be waived. I 

14 t h i n k the issues are c l e a r . 

15 ; HEARING EXAMINER: Mr. K e l l a h i n ? 

16 MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, we'd l i k e the 

17 o p p o r t u n i t y to submit to you a d r a f t o r d e r , s e t t i n g 

18 • f o r t h our p o s i t i o n i n the case. 

19 MR. LOPEZ: I would welcome the same 

20 ' o p p o r t u n i t y then. 
i 

21 HEARING EXAMINER: What kin d of a time 

22 frame, gentlemen? 

23 MR. LOPEZ: I ' l l be gone f o r a week. 
24 MR. KELLAHIN: A week from today, Mr. 

25 Examiner. 
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1 MR. STOVALL: Mr. K e l l a h i n i s known f o r 

2 : being a gentlemanly lawyer. 

3 I MR. LOPEZ: I f I could have two weeks from 

4 ; F r i d a y . I won't be g e t t i n g back u n t i l next Thursday, 

5 a week from tomorrow, and I'm going t o be out of town 

6 F r i d a y . So I wouldn't have any time to s t a r t work on 

7 i t u n t i l the next week. 

8 HEARING EXAMINER: Are you t a l k i n g about 

9 two weeks from t h i s Friday? 

10 ; MR. LOPEZ: Two weeks from t h i s F r i d a y . 

11 i HEARING EXAMINER: And you're saying a week 

12 from Wednesday? 

13 MR. KELLAHIN: How about the 1st of 

14 November, Mr. Examiner? Would t h a t be a l l r i g h t ? 

15 MR. LOPEZ: That's on a Monday, i s n ' t i t ? 

16 : HEARING EXAMINER: No, t h a t ' s on a 

17 Wednesday. I t ' s two weeks from today. 

18 i MR. LOPEZ: Can't you give me two more 

19 days? 

20 MR. KELLAHIN: I ' l l submit mine, and you 

21 can copy i t and change what you don't l i k e . 

22 MR. LOPEZ: Can I have mine i n by November 

23 3rd? 

24 HEARING EXAMINER: Wednesday by f i v e 

25 o'clock, November 1 s t . 
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MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t , s i r . Thank you. 

MR. LOPEZ: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

HEARING EXAMINER: Thank you. 

In t h a t case, Case No. 9782 w i l l be taken 

isement pending d r a f t order from the 

by f i v e o'clock, November 1 s t . 
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